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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2013
Commission File No. 0-7647

HAWKINS, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant as specified in its Chagr)

MINNESOTA 41-0771293
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2381 Rosegate, Roseville,

Minnesota 55113
(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)
(612) 331-6910
(Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Codg
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act: COMMON STOCK, PAR VALUE $.05 PER SHARE
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requirements for the past 90 days. YEb No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant iasnitted electronically and posted on its corpo¥alib site, if any, every Interactive Data File reed
to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 4@&gftilation S-T during the preceding 12 months gostich shorter period that the registrant wasireduo

submit and post such files). Yegl No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquitlers pursuant to Iltem 405 of Regulation S-K i$ contained herein, and will not be containedhi t
best of the Registrant’s knowledge, in definitivexy or information statements incorporated by nafiee in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any amendirten

this Form 10-K. ™M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlezge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting comp&se
the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “ateated filer” and “smaller reporting company” inlle 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filel (] Non-accelerated file O Accelerated file & Smaller reporting compar O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxgle Act). Yes[l No

The aggregate market value of voting stock helddy-affiliates of the Registrant on September 8022(the last business day of the Registrant’s most
recently completed second fiscal quarter) was apmrately $383.4 million based upon the closing galee for the Registrant’'s common stock on thaé ées
reported by The NASDAQ Stock Market, excludingshlares held by officers and directors of the Reggistand by the Trustees of the Registrant’s Engdoy

Stock Ownership Plan and Trust.
As of May 24, 2013 , the Registrant had 10,557 &i##res of common stock outstanding.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of our Proxy Statement for the annual ingedf shareholders to be held August 1, 2013jrax@rporated by reference in Part lll.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The information presented in this Annual ReporfFonm 10-K contains forwartboking statements within the meaning of Sectiok 21 the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (theh&nge Act”). These forwarddoking statements have been made pursuant i
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation B Act of 1995. These statements are not histofécas, but rather are based on our cu
expectations, estimates and projections, and olief®eind assumptions. We intend words such asclpate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,
“believe,” “seek,” “estimate,” “will” and similar xpressions to identify forwartboking statements. These statements are not geamo
future performance and are subject to certain rigksertainties and other factors, some of whiélsyond our control and are difficult
predict. These factors could cause actual resuidiffier materially from those expressed or foréedsn the forwardeoking statements. The
risks and uncertainties are described in the @askofs and elsewhere in this Annual Report on FHdr{. We caution you not to place unc
reliance on these forward-looking statements, whitkect our management's view only as of the déthis Annual Report on Form 10-We
are not obligated to update these statements dicfutelease the result of any revisions to themeflect events or circumstances after the
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or to reflect thccurrence of unanticipated events.

” o, ”ow

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, excepiere otherwise stated or indicated by the contékawkins,” “we,” “us,” “the
Company,” “our,” or “the Registrant” means Hawkims¢. References to “fiscal 2014” means our fisesdr ending March 30, 2014fiscal
2013” means our fiscal year ended March 31, 20figdl 2012” means our fiscal year ended April @12, and “fiscal 2011means our fisc
year ended April 3, 201:
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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Hawkins, Inc. distributes bulk chemicals and blemdanufactures and distributes specialty chemicalsur customers in a wide variety
industries. We began our operations primarily adistributor of bulk chemicals with a strong custenfecus. Over the years, we hi
maintained our strong customer focus and have equhour business by increasing our sales of vatigeed specialty chemical produ
including repackaging, blending and manufacturiagain products. In recent years, we have expatitedales of our highenargin blende
and manufactured products. We believe that we ereatue for our customers through superb servicg@ support, quality produc
personalized applications and our trustworthy, titreamployees.

We currently conduct our business in two segmemnidustrial and Water Treatment. Financial informoatiregarding these segment
reported in our Financial Statements and Notesrtari€ial Statements. See Items 7 and 8 of this AhReport on Form 10-K.

Industrial Segment. Our Industrial Group operates this segment of lnusiness, which specializes in providing industdaemicals
products and services to industries such as agrieylenergy, electronics, food, chemical procesgiulp and paper, pharmaceutical, me«
device and plating. The group's principal prodaetsacids, alkalis and industrial and food-gradis.sa

The Industrial Group:

* Receives, stores and distributes various chemicdisilk, including liquid caustic soda, sulfuricidchydrochloric acid, phosphoric ac
potassium hydroxide and agua ammonia;

« Manufactures sodium hypochlorite (bleach), agtizal products and certain food-grade productsluding our patented Cheese-PRos
liquid phosphate, lactates and other blended pitsgduc

» Repackages water treatment chemicals for our Wiaesaitment Group and bulk industrial chemicals tb isesmaller quantities to o
customers;

» Performs custom blending of certain chemicals fmtaemers according to customer formulas;
« Performs contract and private label packaging @arsehold chemica

The group's sales are concentrated primarily indi§, lowa, Minnesota, Missouri, North Dakota, 8oakota, Tennessee and Wisco
while the group's foodrade products are sold nationally. The IndustBiedup relies on a specially trained sales staff warks directly witl
customers on their specific needs. The group cdediscbusiness primarily through distribution egstand terminal operations.

During fiscal 2012, we purchased a &8¢ parcel of land in Rosemount, Minnesota anéegnstruction of a new facility on the site.
facility became operational in late fiscal 2013eTite provides capacity for future business groartt lessens our dependence on our floo
prone sites on the Mississippi River. While we h#&namsferred some blending and manufacturing agtiei the Rosemount site, we do
intend to close any sites that we currently opeaata result of this transfer of activity.

In fiscal 2011, we completed the acquisition ofstahtially all of the assets of Vertex Chemical @twation (“Vertex”),a manufacturer
sodium hypochlorite in the central Midwest. In atidi to the manufacture of sodium hypochlorite bless, Vertex distributes and provi
terminal services for bulk liquid inorganic chem&aand contract and private label packaging foudetiold chemicals. Its corpor
headquarters are located in St. Louis, Missourthvmanufacturing sites in Dupo, lllinois, Camanchaya, and Memphis, Tennessee
connection with the acquisition we paid the sel®?5.2 million and assumed certain liabilities ofriéx. Vertex's business is part of
Industrial Group.

Water Treatment Segment. Our Water Treatment Group operates this segmieatiobusiness, which specializes in providing cloatls
equipment and solutions for potable water, municgal industrial wastewater, industrial processewaind norresidential swimming po
water. The group has the resources and flexibitityreat systems ranging in size from a single bmall to a multi-million-gallon-perday
facility.

The group utilizes delivery routes operated by @uployees who serve as route driver, salesperstmighly-trained technician to deliv
our products and diagnose our customers' wateintezd needs. We believe that the high level ofisergrovided by these individuals allc
us to serve as the trusted water treatment expendény of the municipalities and other customeas t
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we serve. We also believe that we are able to mlataiompetitive cost position on many of the chafsisold by the Water Treatment Gr.
due to the volumes of these chemicals purchasedibindustrial Group.

The group operates out of warehouses in 19 citipplging products and services to customers prignariArkansas, lllinois, Indiana, low
Kansas, Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, Montana, fdska, North Dakota, Oklahoma, South Dakota, TeseedNisconsin and Wyoming.
opened one new warehouse in fiscal 2013, onecalf012, two in fiscal 2011, and expect to corditminvest in existing and new branche
expand the group's geographic coverage. Our Wateatifient Group has historically experienced higgades during April to Septemb
primarily due to a seasonal increase in chemicsdsl oy municipal water treatment facilities.

Discontinued Operations. In fiscal 2009, we entered into two agreementsreby we agreed to sell our inventory and enter anarketin
relationship regarding the business of our Pharotaiad segment, which provided pharmaceutical clatsito retail pharmacies and small
scale pharmaceutical manufacturers. We have ndneomg) obligations to fulfill under the agreementhe results of the Pharmaceut
segment have been reported as discontinued opgsaticour consolidated financial statements fopaliods presented in this Annual Re
on Form 10-K.

Raw Materials. We have numerous suppliers, including many ofrttegor chemical producers in the United States. tyyécally hawve
written distributorship agreements or supply cactgavith our suppliers that are periodically rendwé/e believe that most of the products
purchase can be obtained from alternative souteasld existing relationships be terminated. Wedmpendent upon the availability of our |
materials. In the event that certain raw matetiglsome generally unavailable, suppliers may extead times or limit or cut off the supply
materials to us. As a result, we may not be ablsugaply or manufacture products for our custom@érhile we believe we have adeqt
sources of supply for our raw material and prodaquirements, we cannot be sure that suppliedbeittonsistently available in the future.

Intellectual Property. Our intellectual property portfolio is of econanimportance to our business. When appropriatehawe pursue
and we will continue to pursue, patents covering moducts. We also have obtained certain tradesnmkour products to distinguish th
from our competitors' products. The patent for 6heese-Phddliquid phosphate product, which is manufacturedby Industrial group, wi
expire in November 2013. We regard much of the tdam, information and processes that we generataisa in the conduct of our busin
as proprietary and protectable under applicablgrigipt, patent, trademark, trade secret and uefainpetition laws.

Customer Concentration. In fiscal 2013, none of our customers accountedl0% or more of our total sales. Sales to owgdsir customi
represented 7.3%, 7.1% and 6.2% of our total saliscal 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Aggtegales to our five largest customer:
of which are in our Industrial segment, represe@e®%, 24.8% and 24.1% of our total sales in fig€d 3, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
other customer represented more than 2% of ourgates in fiscal 2013. The loss of any of our émtgcustomers, or a substantial portio
their business, could have a material adverseteffeour results of operations.

Competition. We operate in a competitive industry and competh many producers, distributors and sales agefiexing chemical
equivalent to substantially all of the products handle. Many of our competitors are larger thanase and may have greater finan
resources, although no one competitor is dominaoui industry. We compete by offering quality puots at competitive prices coupled v
outstanding customer service. Because of our Btageding relationships with many of our suppliex® are often able to leverage th
relationships to obtain products when suppliessaagce or to obtain competitive pricing.

Geographic Information. Substantially all of our revenues are generagazistomers within, and lorired assets are located in, the Un
States, with only approximately 0.5% of our to®lenues to customers outside of the U.S. in fi384B.

Employees. We had 354 employees as of March 31, 2013, immus2 covered by collective bargaining agreements.

About Us. Hawkins, Inc. was founded in 1938 and incorpatateMinnesota in 1955. We became a publithded company in 1972. C
principal executive offices are located at 2381dR@age, Roseville, Minnesota.

Available Information. We have made available, free of charge, throughlaternet website (http://www.hawkinsinc.com) oAmnua
Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on FornQl@Gurrent Reports on Formkg-and, if applicable, amendments to those repagsoo
as reasonably practicable after we electronicdllythese materials with, or furnish them to, tlee@&ities and Exchange Commission. Rej
of beneficial ownership filed by our directors aexkcutive officers pursuant to Section 16(a) of EBxehange Act are also available on
website. We are not including the information camd on our website as part of, or incorporatingyitreference into, this Annual Report
Form 10-K.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should consider carefully the following risks when reading the information, including the financial information, contained in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Fluctuations in the prices and availability of comodity chemicals, which areyclical in nature, could have a material adverstest on oul
operations and the margins of our products.

Periodically, we experience significant and ragigctuations in the commodity pricing of raw matésiaThe cyclicality of commodi
chemical markets, such as caustic soda, primaegylts from changes in the balance between supmydamand and the level of gen
economic activity. We cannot predict whether thekaes for our commodity chemicals will favorablyparct our operations or whether we
experience a negative impact due to oversupphtlaadesulting compression of margins we can realize

Our principal raw materials are generally purchaseder supply contracts. The prices we pay undesetltontracts generally lag the ma
prices of the underlying raw material and the afshventory we have on hand generally will lag therent market pricing of such inventc
The pricing within our supply contracts generaltjjusts quarterly or monthly. While we attempt toimi@n competitive pricing and stal
margin dollars, the variability in our cost of imtery from the current market pricing can causaifitant volatility in our margins realized.
periods of rapidly increasing market prices, theeirtory cost position will tend to be favorableusy possibly by material amounts, which 1
positively impact our margins. Conversely, in pdsa®f rapidly decreasing market prices, the invgntost position will tend to be unfavora
to us, possibly by material amounts, which may tiegly impact our margins. We do not engage in ffiesuor other derivatives contract:
hedge against fluctuations in future prices. We mater into sales contracts where the selling prioe our products are fixed for a perioc
time, exposing us to volatility in raw materialdgas that we acquire on a spot market or stesrtr contractual basis. We attempt to |
commodity pricing changes to our customers, butmag be unable to or be delayed in doing so. Ouilitiato pass through price increase
any limitation or delay in our passing through princreases could adversely affect our profit nmergi

We are also dependent upon the availability of rawv materials. In the event that raw materialsiarshort supply or unavailable, r
material suppliers may extend lead times or limitwt off supplies. As a result, we may not be ablsupply or manufacture products for st
or all of our customers. Constraints on the supphdelivery of critical raw materials could disruptir operations and adversely affect
performance of our business.

We operate in a highly competitive environment afate significant competition and price pressure.

We operate in a highly competitive industry and pete with producers, manufacturers, distributord sales agents offering chemic
equivalent to substantially all of the products handle. Competition is based on several key caitencluding product price, prodi
performance, product quality, product availabiityd security of supply, responsiveness of prodaeekbpment in cooperation with custom
and customer service. Many of our competitors arger than we are and may have greater financalurees. As a result, these compet
may be better able than us to withstand changeilitions within our industry, changes in the gsicand availability of raw materie
changes in general economic conditions and be tabletroduce innovative products that reduce demfancor the profit of our produci
Additionally, competitors' pricing decisions couddmpel us to decrease our prices, which could aéleaffect our margins and profitabili
Our ability to maintain or increase our profitatyilis dependent upon our ability to offset competidecreases in the prices and margins ¢
products by improving production efficiency and wwole, identifying and selling higher margin chemipabducts and improving existi
products through innovation and research and dpwedat. If we are unable to maintain our profitapithr competitive position, we could Ic
market share to our competitors and experiencecestiprofitability.

Demand for our products is affected by general eoaric conditions and by theyclical nature of many of the industries we serwehich
could cause significant fluctuations in our sale®mes and results.

Demand for our products is affected by general enva conditions. A decline in general economic osihess conditions in the indust
served by our customers could have a material adveffect on our business. Although we sell to aateaditionally considered naryclical
such as water treatment and food products, manguofcustomers are in businesses that are cyclicalature, such as the indusl
manufacturing, surface finishing and energy indestwhich include the ethanol and agriculture imdes. Downturns in these industries cc
adversely affect our sales and our financial redutaffecting demand for and pricing of our praduc
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Changes in our customers' products or failure of oproducts to meet customerguality specifications could adversely affect owalss ant
profitability.

Our chemicals are used for a broad range of agjlitsaby our customers. Changes in our customaessuygts or processes may enable
customers to reduce or eliminate consumption ottiemicals that we provide. Customers may alsoditefnative materials or processes
no longer require our products. Consequently, itriportant that we develop new products to replieesales of products that mature
decline in use.

Our products provide important performance attelsub our customers' products. If our productstéaiheet the customers' specificatit
perform in a manner consistent with quality speaifions or have a shorter useful life than requieedustomer could seek replacement o
product or damages for costs incurred as a re$titteoproduct failure. A successful claim or semélaims against us could have a mat
adverse effect on our financial condition and rssof operations and could result in a loss of @nmore customers.

Our business is subject to hazards common to chainiusinesses, any of which couldterrupt our production and adversely affect @
results of operations.

Our business is subject to hazards common to clemianufacturing, storage, handling and transgortaincluding explosions, fire
severe weather, natural disasters, mechanicatdailitnscheduled downtime, transportation interomsj chemical spills, discharges or rele
of toxic or hazardous substances or gases and o#kasr These hazards could cause personal injudyl@ss of life, severe damage tc
destruction of property and equipment, and enviremia contamination. In addition, the occurrencarafterial operating problems at
facilities due to any of these hazards may dimiishability to meet our output goals and resulainegative public or political reaction. M
of our facilities are bordered by significant resitial populations which increase the risk of negapublic or political reaction should
environmental issue occur and could lead to adveoséng or other regulatory actions that could fimirr ability to operate our busines:
those locations. Accordingly, these hazards anid toesequences could have a material adverset effiecur operations as a whole, incluc
our results of operations and cash flows, bothrduaind after the period of operational difficulties

Environmental, health and safety laws and regulati® cause us to incur substantial costs and may sebys to future liabilities.

We are subject to numerous federal, state and Eralonmental, health and safety laws and reguriatin the jurisdictions in which \
operate, including those governing the dischargeodifitants into the air and water, and the managerand disposal of hazardous subste
and wastes. The nature of our business exposes tisks of liability under these laws and regulaicdue to the production, storage,
transportation and sale of materials that can caaetamination or personal injury if released itite environment. Ongoing compliance v
such laws and regulations is an important consiaerdor us and we invest substantial capital ameli significant operating costs in
compliance efforts. Governmental regulation haohexincreasingly strict in recent years. We explgisttrend to continue and anticipate
compliance will continue to require increased cdpkpenditures and operating costs.

If we violate environmental, health and safety lawsegulations, in addition to being required torect such violations, we could be t
liable in administrative, civil or criminal proceieds for substantial fines and other sanctions timatld disrupt or limit our operatiot
Liabilities associated with the investigation anldanup of hazardous substances, as well as perggugl, property damages or natt
resource damages arising out of such hazardoudasles, may be imposed in many situations withegaurd to violations of laws
regulations or other fault, and may also be impgsedly and severally (so that a responsible pary be held liable for more than its shar
the losses involved, or even the entire loss). Siaddilities can be difficult to identify and thextent of any such liabilities can be difficult
predict. We use, and in the past have used, hazsrslabstances at many of our facilities, and hameted, and continue to genel
hazardous wastes at a number of our facilitiesh&e in the past, and may in the future, be sulbpeckaims relating to exposure to hazarc
materials and the associated liabilities may beenadt

Our business, particularly our Water Treatment Grpuis subject to seasonality avdeather conditions, which could adversely affectr
results of operations.

Our Water Treatment Group has historically expe@ehhigher sales during April to September, pritpadue to a seasonal increas:
chemicals used by municipal water treatment faeditDemand is also affected by weather conditiassgither higher or lower than nori
precipitation or temperatures may affect water asagd the consumption of our products. We canrmtrasyou that seasonality or fluctua
weather conditions will not have a material adveffect on our results of operations.
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The insurance that we maintain may not fully covall potential exposures.

We maintain property, business interruption andiakyg insurance, but such insurance may not coleisks associated with the hazard:
our business and is subject to limitations, inalgddeductibles and limits on the liabilities cowkrg/e may incur losses beyond the limit
outside the coverage of our insurance policieduding liabilities for environmental remediatiom &ddition, from time to time, various tyj
of insurance for companies in the specialty chehiichustry have not been available on commerciatigeptable terms or, in some cases,
not been available at all. In the future, we maylable to obtain coverage at current levels,andoremiums may increase significantly
coverage that we maintain.

If we are unable to retain key personnel or attrawew skilled personnel, it could have an adversgaut on our business.

Because of the specialized and technical natumiobusiness, our future performance is dependemii® continued service of, and on
ability to attract and retain, qualified managemeutentific, technical and support personnel. Thanticipated departure of key membel
our management team could have an adverse impagirdrusiness.

We may not be able to successfully consummate fatacquisitions or integrateacquisitions into our business, which could resuit
unanticipated expenses and losses.

As part of our business growth strategy, we havpiiaed businesses and may pursue acquisitionseirfutiure. Our ability to pursue tl
strategy will be limited by our ability to identifgppropriate acquisition candidates and our firen@sources, including available cash
borrowing capacity. The expense incurred in consatimg acquisitions, the time it takes to integrateacquisition or our failure to integr
businesses successfully could result in unantiegpaixpenses and losses. Furthermore, we may ralbledo realize the anticipated bent
from acquisitions.

The process of integrating acquired operations @utoexisting operations may result in unforeseperating difficulties and may requ
significant financial resources that would otheevise available for the ongoing development or egimenof existing operations. The ri:
associated with the integration of acquisitiondude potential disruption of our ongoing businesd distraction of management, unfores
claims, liabilities, adjustments, charges and woitis, difficulty in conforming the acquired busisestandards, processes, procedure:
controls with our operations, and challenges agifiom the increased scope, geographic diversitlycamplexity of the expanded operations.

Our business is subject to risks stemming from raiudisasters or otheextraordinary events outside of our control, whicwould interrupt
our production and adversely affect our results @berations.

Natural disasters have the potential of interruptiur operations and damaging our properties, wbathld adversely affect our busine
Since 1963, flooding of the Mississippi River haguired the Company's terminal operations to betearily shifted out of its buildings sev
times, including three times since the spring dE®0Ne can give no assurance that flooding or atagural disasters will not recur or that tt
will not be material damage or interruption to operations in the future from such disasters.

Chemicalrelated assets may be at greater risk of futurerist attacks than other possible targets in thidd States. Federal law impao
site security requirements, specifically on cheinfaailities, which have increased our overheademges. Federal regulations have also
adopted to increase the security of the transpontaif hazardous chemicals in the United States.sMp and receive materials that
classified as hazardous and we believe we havehesé requirements, but additional federal and l@gulations that limit the distribution
hazardous materials are being considered. Bansowement of hazardous materials through certairscitould adversely affect the efficie
of our logistical operations. Broader restrictimmshazardous material movements could lead toiadditinvestment and could change wi
and what products we provide.

The occurrence of extraordinary events, includimgrie terrorist attacks and the outbreak or esoalatf hostilities, cannot be predicted,
their occurrence can be expected to negativelycatfee economy in general, and specifically the ket for our products. The result
damage from a direct attack on our assets, orsagsetl by us, could include loss of life and prigpdamage. In addition, available insura
coverage may not be sufficient to cover all of daenage incurred or, if available, may be prohikitvexpensive.

We may not be able to renew our leases of land vehfeur of our operations facilities reside.
We lease the land where our three main terminasl@rated and where a significant manufacturingtpla located. We do not he
guaranteed lease renewal options and may not leetalsknew our leases in the future. Our curresgderenewal periods extend out to 2

(two leases), 2023 (one lease) and 2029 (one leRse)failure to secure extended lease terms ormaayof
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these facilities may have a material adverse impaabur business, as they are where a significaritom of our chemicals are manufactt
and where the majority of our bulk chemicals aogest. While we can make no assurances, based tonidés experience and anticipated fui
needs, we intend to extend these leases and befiaveve will be able to renew our leases as thewal periods expire. If we are unabli
renew three of our leases (two relate to terminals one to manufacturing) any property remaininghenland becomes the property of
lessor, and the lessor has the option to eithentiaiaithe property or remove the property at oygresse. These asset retirement obligation
the cost to relocate our operations could havetanahadverse effect on our results of operatamd financial condition.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate office is located in Roseville, MNhave we lease approximately 40,000 square feetrumdeblease with an initial te
through December 31, 2021. We own our principal ufecturing, warehousing, and distribution locationMinneapolis, Minnesota, whi
consists of approximately 11 acres of land, withksiildings containing a total of 177,000 squaret fef office and warehouse space primi
used by our Industrial Group. We have installednper systems in substantially all of our wareho@acilities for fire protection. We belie
that we carry customary levels of insurance coygtfire replacement of damaged property.

In addition to the facilities described previoustyr other facilities are described below. We halithat these facilities, together with th
described above, are adequate and suitable fauitpmses they serve. Unless noted, each faciliyvised by us and is primarily used as of
and warehouse.

Approx.

Group Location Square Feet
Industrial St. Paul, MN(1) 32,000
Minneapolis, MN(2) 29,000

Centralia, IL(3) 77,000
Camanche, IA(4) 95,000

St Louis, MO(4) 6,000

Dupo, IL(4) 64,000
Rosemount, MN(5) 63,000

Water Treatment Fargo, ND 20,000

Fond du Lac, WI 24,000
Washburn, ND 14,000

Billings, MT 9,000
Sioux Falls, SD 27,000

Rapid City, SD 9,000
Peotone, IL(6) 18,000
Superior, WI 17,000

Slater, 1A 12,000

Lincoln, NE(6) 16,000

Eldridge, 1A 6,000
Columbia, MO(6) 14,000
Garnett, KS 18,000
Ft. Smith, AR(6) 17,000

Muncie, IN 12,000

Centralia, IL 39,000
Havana, IL 16,000

Industrial and Water Treatment St. Paul, MN(7) 59,000
Memphis, TN(4) 41,000
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(1) Our terminal operations, located at two sites opogfie sides of the Mississippi River, are madeihree buildings, outside store
tanks for the storage of liquid bulk chemicals,luding caustic soda, as well as numerous smallekstdor storing and mixir
chemicals. The land is leased from the Port Autharf the City of St. Paul, Minnesota. The appliealeases run until December 2C
at which time we have an option to renew the ledsesin additional fiverear period on the same terms and conditions subj
renegotiation of rent.

(2) This facility is leased from a third party to seour bulk pharmaceutical custom

(3) This facility includes 10 acres of land locateddantralia, lllinois owned by the company. The féigibecame operational in July 20
includes manufacturing capacity and primarily serear foodgrade products business. Prior to fiscal 2011 fdugity was shared wit
the Water Treatment Group.

(4) The acquisition of Vertex in fiscal 2011 included affice building located in St Louis, Missouri anthnufacturing and warehot
facilities located in Memphis, Tennessee; Camanidvea; and Dupo, lllinois. All of the facilities drland are owned by the comp:
with the exception of the land in Dupo, lllinoishigh is leased from a third party. The lease rimeugh May, 2023. The facility
Memphis is shared between the Industrial and Werestment Groups.

(5) This facility includes 28 acres of land owned bg tompany. This manufacturing facility was congeddy us and became operatic
in late fiscal 2013.

(6) This facility is leased from a third par

(7) Our Red Rock facility, which consists of a @) squardeot building located on approximately 10 acredasfd, has outside store
capacity for liquid bulk chemicals, as well as nuous smaller tanks for storing and mixing chemic@lse land is leased from the F
Authority of the City of St. Paul, Minnesota ane flease runs until 2029.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As previously reported in our quarterly report ani 10-Q for the first quarter of fiscal 2013, amé 15, 2012, we entered into a
settlement agreement with ICL Performance Produeté'ICL"), a chemical supplier to us, pursuantwthich we mutually resolved the
previously disclosed litigation and all disputesoam us. The settlement agreement provided for la gagment by us to ICL and provided that
both parties enter into new contracts for the supplICL of certain chemicals to us. Our obligaBamder the settlement agreement resulted
a $3.2 million charge to pre-tax income recordedast of sales (approximately $2.0 million aftef)tduring the first quarter of fiscal 2013.

We are a party from time to time in other legalga®dings arising in the ordinary course of ouress. To date, other litigation has not
a material effect on us.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE COMPANYS COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS, ANOSSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Quarterly Stock Data High Low
Fiscal 2013
4™ Quarter $ 40.9¢ $ 37.2¢
3" Quarter 42.0¢ 36.1¢
2" Quarter 42.2¢ 35.7%
1t Quarter 38.5¢ 31.0¢
Fiscal 2012
4™ Quarter $ 42.9: $ 34.3¢
3" Quarter 40.8¢ 29.0¢
2" Quarter 38.6¢ 30.1¢
1 Quarter 47 4¢ 33.3(
Cash Dividends Declared Paid
Fiscal 2014
1 Quarter — % 0.3¢
Fiscal 2013
4™ Quarter $ 0.3¢ —_
3" Quarter — % 0.34
2" Quarter $ 0.3¢ —_
1t Quarter — % 0.32
Fiscal 2012
4™ Quarter $ 0.32 —
3" Quarter — % 0.3z
2" Quarter $ 0.32 —
1t Quarter — % 0.3(C

Our common shares are traded on The NASDAQ Glokak®t under the symbol “HWKN.The price information represents closing
prices as reported by The NASDAQ Global Market. dfsMarch 31, 2013, shares of our common stock welel by approximate
488 shareholders of record.

We first started paying cash dividends in 1985 hade continued to do so since. Future dividendlsevell be dependent upon ¢
consolidated results of operations, financial posjtcash flows and other factors, and will be eatdd by our Board of Directors.

We did not sell or repurchase any shares of ouneomstock during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013.
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The following graph compares the cumulative totahreholder return on our common shares with theutatime total returns of tt
NASDAQ Industrial Index, the NASDAQ Composite Inddlie Russell 2000 Index and the Standard & P¢“S&P”) Small Cap 600 Inde
for our last five completed fiscal years. The gragBumes the investment of $100 in our stock, tASMAQ Industrial Index, the NASDA
Composite Index, the Russell 2000 Index and the S&fll Cap 600 Index on March 30, 2008, and reitmvest of all dividends.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Selected financial data for the Company is preskint¢he table below and should be read in conjanavith Management'’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©pkrations included in Item 7 and the Company’'ssotidated financial statements and
notes thereto included in Item 8 herein.

Fiscal Years
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands, except per share data)

Sales from continuing operations $ 350,38 $ 34383« $ 297,64: $ 257,09¢ $ 284,35t
Gross profit from continuing operations 56,93¢ 65,86¢ 61,90: 64,44: 62,42(
Income from continuing operations 17,10¢ 21,62¢ 20,31 23,73¢ 23,424
Basic earnings per common share from continuingatjp®s 1.6¢4 2.0¢ 1.9¢ 2.32 2.2¢
Diluted earnings per common share from continuing

operations 1.62 2.0¢ 1.9¢ 2.31 2.2¢
Cash dividends declared per common share 0.6¢ 0.6 0.7¢ 0.6€ 0.52
Cash dividends paid per common share 0.6¢€ 0.62 0.6¢ 0.64 0.5C
Total assets $ 222,14¢ $ 204,080 $ 185,000 $ 160,290 $ 136,29(
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following is a discussion and analysis of anarficial condition and results of operations fecél 2013, 2012 and 2011. This discus
should be read in conjunction with the Financiadt&mnents and Notes to Financial Statements inclidégm 8 of this Annual Report
Form 10-K.

Overview

We derive substantially all of our revenues from $lale of bulk and specialty chemicals to our qusts in a wide variety of industries. '
began our operations primarily as a distributobolk chemicals with a strong customer focus. Ower tears we have maintained the st
customer focus and have expanded our businesscbhgasing our sales of valaelded specialty chemical products, including repgiig
blending and manufacturing certain products. Irenég/ears, we have expanded the sales of our highegin blended and manufactu
products.

We have continued to invest in growing our busin@ssing fiscal 2012, we purchased a &8e parcel of land in Rosemount, Minne
and began construction of a new facility on the.skhis Industrial manufacturing facility becameemional in late fiscal 2013. The ¢
provides capacity for future business growth argsdas our dependence on our flgodre sites on the Mississippi River. While we t
transferred some blending and manufacturing agtieitthe Rosemount site, we do not intend to closgesites we currently operate as a r
of this transfer of activity. In fiscal 2013, wecinred incremental costs related to this new fgodf approximately $1.3 million, and anticip
additional incremental costs of approximately $hiion to operate this facility for the entire yea fiscal 2014.

In April 2013, we moved into a new corporate headtprs located in Roseville, Minnesota. The move wacessary because we
outgrown our former corporate headquarters thatiesth our home for over 60 years. As a resultisfrtiove, we expect to incur increme
costs of approximately $1.0 million to lease andrage this facility starting in fiscal 2014.

We recorded a pre-tax charge of $7.2 million in tndustrial segment (approximately $4.5 millioneaftax, or $0.43er share, full
diluted) in the third quarter of fiscal 2013. Thiisarge represented the discounted value of ounatd withdrawal payment obligation fr
the Central States, Southeast and Southwest Arasidd Fund (“CSS” or “the plan”g collectively bargained multiemployer pension [
Our patrticipation in the plan was pursuant to twllective bargaining agreements that were modifiedng the fourth quarter of fiscal 201:
discontinue our participation in CSS. As a replaeetior CSS, we have agreed to provide defioeatribution retirement benefits to our un
employees that are similar to those benefits ctigreffered to our norunion employees. We estimate the aggregate cashgudy to be mau
to total approximately $9.3 million, or $467,000 pear beginning some time in fiscal 2014 and cantig annually for twenty years. We h.
accrued the discounted value of that payment didigan the “Pension withdrawalline item on the consolidated statements of incdon
fiscal 2013.
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The ultimate amount of the withdrawal liability eassed by CSS could be impacted by a number ofrfadtcluding, among other things
mass withdrawal (generally a withdrawal of subs#diytall contributing employers), the number of kkoveeks reported to CSS by us,
hourly contribution rate paid by us, the contingedticipation of other employers in CSS, financidiiculty of other participating employers
the plan (including bankruptcy), investment retutmsnefit levels, and interest rates. Any assessinezxcess of our accrual could impact
future results of operations and financial conditio

In fiscal 2013, we entered into a settlement agesgrwith ICL Performance Products LP (“ICL'3, chemical supplier to us, pursuar
which we mutually resolved the previously disclofiigation and all disputes among us. The settlenagreement provided for a cash payr
by us to ICL and provided that both parties entés hew contracts for the supply by ICL of certeiremicals to us. Our obligations under
settlement agreement resulted in a $3.2 milliongdh#o pre-tax income recorded in cost of salepr@pmately $2.0 million after tax ¢§0.1¢
per share, fully diluted) in the first quarter afdal 2013. Of the total charge, $2.1 million wasdgn fiscal 2013.

We anticipate that in fiscal 2014 we will be vangtour leased facility currently used to produce lmulk pharmaceutical products. We \
transfer production of certain of these productsup other Industrial production facilities andatistinue production of the remaining proc
lines. As a result, we recorded a pag-charge of approximately $0.4 million in our Ursthial segment (approximately $0.2 million aftax)
related to accelerated depreciation on leasehgbdovements and manufacturing equipment relatetisofacility in the fourth quarter of fisc
2013. We expect to incur ptax charges of $0.8 to $1.0 million during thetflialf of fiscal 2014 related to additional depegitin expense ai
other costs associated with exiting this facility.

In fiscal 2011, we completed the acquisition ofstahtially all of the assets of Vertex for approately $27.2 million. In addition to tl
manufacture of sodium hypochlorite bleaches, Vedisikibutes and provides terminal services fokbigjuid inorganic chemicals, and contt
and private label packaging for household chemidAe believe the acquisition strengthens our maplsition in the Midwest. Operati
results of Vertex are included in our consolidateslilts of operations from the date of acquisitiothis Annual Report on Form 1K-as pat
of our Industrial segment. See Note 2 to the Cadatdd Financial Statements for further information

We opened one new branch for our Water Treatmeotiiin fiscal 2013, one in fiscal 2012, and twdigtal 2011, and expect to contit
to invest in existing and new branches to expand/dater Treatment Group's geographic coverage.cbseof these branch expansions is
expected to be material. In addition, we have s$igldy added route sales personnel to certain iexjd/ater Treatment Group branch office
spur growth within our existing geographic coverages.

Our financial performance in fiscal 2013 was highted by:
»  Sales from continuing operations of $350illion , a 1.9% increase from fiscal 2012

. Gross profit from continuing operations of $5@#lion , or 16.2% of sales, an $8.9 million demsein gross profit dollars from fisc
2012 , which was negatively impacted by menurring charges of $7.2 million related to outhdrawal from a multiemployer pens
plan and $3.2 million related to a litigation settient;

* Net cash provided by operating activitie$85.5 million; anc
» Cash and cash equivalents and investmeatkahble for sale of $49.9 million as of the endistal 2013.

We seek to maintain relatively constant gross pdillars per unit sold on each of our productshascost of our raw materials increas
decrease. Since we expect that we will continuexferience fluctuations in our raw material cosid Besulting prices in the future, we beli
that gross profit dollars is the best measure ofpoafitability from the sale of our products. liewnaintain relatively stable gross profit dol
on each of our products, our reported gross ppefitentage will decrease when the cost of the ptddareases and will increase when the
of the product decreases.

We use the last in, first out (“LIFO’hethod of valuing the vast majority of our invertowhich causes the most recent product costs
recognized in our income statement. The valuatiollBO inventory for interim periods is based orr @stimates of fiscal yeand inventor
levels and costs. The LIFO inventory valuation rodtland the resulting cost of sales are consist@&htaur business practices of pricing
current bulk chemical raw material prices. Our LIF€erve decreased by $0.4 million in fiscal 2@t@8narily due to reduced volumes
certain bulk products in inventory at yeamed, resulting in an increase to our reported gposft for the year. In fiscal 2012, our LIFO rege
increased by $1.6 milliodue to the higher volumes and the mix of bulk cloatlsiin inventory at the end of the year. This éase in th
reserve reduced our reported gross profit in figEAl2 .
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain items froor gtatement of income as a percentage of salesgayiod to period:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2013 2012 2011
Sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.C %
Cost of sales (81.9% (80.9% (79.29%
Pension withdrawal (2.2)% — % — %
Gross profit 16.2 % 19.2% 20.8%
Selling, general and administrative expenses (9.0% (9.0% (10.0)%
Operating income 7.2% 10.2% 10.7%
Investment income 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Income from continuing operations before incometax 7.2% 10.2% 10.€%
Provision for income taxes (2.9% (4.0% (4.0%
Income from continuing operations 4.C% 6.2% 6.€ %
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — % 0.2% — %
Net income 4.C% 6.€ % 6.8 %

Fiscal 2013 Compared to Fiscal 2012
Sales

Sales increased $6.6 million , or 1.9% , to $35@ilion for fiscal 2013 , as compared to sales 8838 million for fiscal 2012 The
increasen sales was primarily due to increased sales mVdater Treatment segment driven by favorable wexatlonditions during the fit
half of fiscal 2013 and volume growth of lowgriced bulk products in both of our segments, plytioffset by lower sales of other product
our Industrial segment. Sales of bulk chemicalduiting caustic soda, were approximately 24% ofsabmpared to approximately 23% in
previous year.

Industrial Segment. Industrial segment sales decreased $2.9 million1.2% , to $248.6 million for fiscal 2013/Nhile overall volume
increased year-over-year, competitive pricing presssesulted in lower overall per-unit selling j@sc

Water Treatment Segment. Water Treatment segment sales increased $9.&omillor 10.2% , to $101.8 million for fiscal 2013The
increase in sales was primarily due to volume gnongsulting from favorable weather conditions ie first half of fiscal 2013 and additiol
sales of bulk products.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $56.9 million , or 16.2% of salfes,fiscal 2013 , as compared to $65.9 milliorr 18.2% of sales, for fiscal 201ZFisca
2013 gross profit was negatively impacted by the $illion CSS pension withdrawal and the $3.2 imillcharge resulting from the litigati
settlement, which charges together constituted 0%ales for the fiscal year. Additionally, grosofit was negatively impacted by $.
million of incremental costs related to the new &osunt facility, and $0.4 million of acceleraterkriation charges related to a facility
intend to vacate in fiscal 2014. The LIFO methodraluing inventory increased gross profit by $0.dliom for fiscal 2013primarily due t
reduced volumes of certain bulk products in inventat year end. In the prior year, LIFO reducedsgrprofit by $1.6 milliordue to highe
volumes and the mix of bulk chemicals in inventatyhe end of the year.

Industrial Segment. Gross profit for the Industrial segment was $28i8ion , or 11.6% of sales, for fiscal 2013 , asmpared td40.4
million , or 16.0% of sales, for fiscal 2012 . FAb2013 gross profit for this segment was negatiumpacted by the $7.2 millio8SS pensic
withdrawal charge and the $3.2 million charge résglfrom the litigation settlement, which chargegether constituted 4.2%f Industria
segment sales for the fiscal year. Gross profitthis segment was also negatively impacted by hemgu competitive pricing presst
resulting in overall lower peunit margins, $1.3 million in incremental costs fbe new Rosemount facility, and by $0.4 millionaaicelerate
depreciation charges related to the facility werick to vacate as noted
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above. The LIFO method of valuing inventory inceshgross profit by $0.4 million in fiscal 2013 aretluced gross profit by $1.5 millian
fiscal 2012.

Water Treatment Segment. Gross profit for the Water Treatment segment $2&1 million , or 27.6% of sales, for fiscal 2018 compare
to $25.5 million , or 27.6% of sales, for fiscall20 The increase in gross profit dollars was prinyaglilie to increased volumes resulting f
favorable weather conditions during the first t&lfthe year, partially offset by a shift in produntx to increased sales of lowsrargin bull
products. The LIFO method of valuing inventory madsignificant impact on gross profit in fiscal B0dnd negatively impacted gross profil
$0.1 million in fiscal 2012 .

Slling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses watet$million , or 9.0% of sales, for fiscal 201&s, compared to $30.8 million , or 8.9%
sales, for fiscal 2012The increase was primarily due to higher sellingts due to additional sales staff, partially eiffsy lower administratic
costs.

Operating Income

Operating income was $25.3 million , or 7.2% oksafor fiscal 2013 , as compared to $35.1 milbori0.2% of sales, for fiscal 2012An
$11.6 million decrease in operating income forltidustrial segment was partially offset by a $1i8iom increase in operating income for
Water Treatment segment. Operating income for tideidtrial segment was negatively impacted by th8 @&nsion withdrawal, the litigati
settlement agreement, heightened competitive gripnessure, the addition of a new production figcdind the accelerated depreciation rel
to the anticipated exit of a leased facility. THEQ method of valuing inventory increased our opiegaincome in fiscal 2013, but reduced
operating income in fiscal 2012.

Investment Income
Investment income was $0.1 million for both fis2all3 and 2012 .
Provision for Income Taxes

Our effective income tax rate was 32.7% for fi2@l 3 compared to 38.6% for fiscal 201Ruring fiscal 2013, we amended previously 1
U.S. Federal tax returns resulting in an incredsg0d8 million in the benefits related to the dotiesanufacturing deduction and investn
tax credits, which positively impacted our tax ridethe year. The effective tax rate is generaiipacted by projected levels of taxable incc
permanent items, and state taxes.

Fiscal 2012 Compared to Fiscal 2011
Sales

Sales increased $46.2 million, or 15.5%, to $343lBon for fiscal 2012, as compared to sales 09%B million for fiscal 2011. Verte
which we acquired during the fourth quarter of 20ddntributed $32.9 million of the increase in saler fiscal 2012. We also experien
increased sales as a result of higher selling prilcee to increased commodity chemical prices. SHlésilk chemicals, including caustic sc
were approximately 23% of sales compared to apprately 20% in the previous year. The increase éntthlk chemical sales percentage
fiscal 2012 was primarily attributable to a fullareof Vertex sales volumes compared to a partiaf yrefiscal 2011.

Industrial Segment. Industrial segment sales increased $42.7 milliwrR0.5%, to $251.4 million for fiscal 2012. Verteontributed $32.
million of the increase in sales for fiscal 2012e \&kperienced higher selling prices due to incetasenmodity chemical prices.

Water Treatment Segment. Water Treatment segment sales increased $3.milbr 3.9%, to $92.4 million for fiscal 2012. Tisale:
increase was primarily attributable to increasddsseolumes related to manufactured and specikynical products and higher bulk chem
selling prices due to increased commodity chenpdaks for those products.

Gross Profit
Gross profit was $65.9 million, or 19.2% of sales,fiscal 2012, as compared to $61.9 million, 6r8% of sales, for fiscal 2011. The LI
method of valuing inventory negatively impacted sgrrofit by $1.6 million for fiscal 2012 primarigue to volumes and mix of commoc

chemicals in inventory at the end of the yearhm prior year, LIFO negatively impacted gross
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profit by $3.9 million due to rising raw materiabsts and higher inventory volumes on hand at gear-maintained to meet custol
requirements during an anticipated flood.

Industrial Segment. Gross profit for the Industrial segment was $4@idion, or 16.1% of sales, for fiscal 2012, asmpared t
$36.9 million, or 17.7% of sales, for fiscal 20TThe increase in gross profit dollars resulted fria addition of the Vertex business to
segment, partially offset by lower selling pricesedo competitive pricing pressures and lower v@snThe LIFO method of valuing invent
negatively impacted gross profit in this segmen$hys million in fiscal 2012 and $2.9 million irsfial 2011.

Water Treatment Segment. Gross profit for the Water Treatment segment $2&5 million, or 27.6% of sales, for fiscal 2043, compare
to $25.0 million, or 28.1% of sales, for fiscal 20The increase in gross profit dollars was pritgatue to increased sales volumes in the |
half of the fiscal 2012 more than offsetting lowedumes resulting from unfavorable weather condgiauring the first half of the year ¢
lower selling prices due to competitive pricing gseres. The LIFO method of valuing inventory negdyi impacted gross profit in tt
segment by $0.1 million in fiscal 2012 and $1.1lignl in fiscal 2011.

Slling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses wa8e8million, or 9.0% of sales, for fiscal 2012,csnpared to $29.9 million, or 10.1%
sales, for fiscal 2011. The increase was primatilg to the addition of expenses related to theeXdvtisiness, which we acquired in the fo
quarter of fiscal 2011, partially offset by otime costs we incurred in fiscal 2011 but did ngperience in fiscal 2012. Fiscal 2011 inclu
approximately $1.0 million in expense as a restlthe death of John Hawkins, our former Chief ExeeuOfficer, through payments ¢
under his retention bonus agreement and the aateteresting of his previously granted performalnased restricted stock units and s
options, as well as approximately $0.7 million iertéx acquisition costs.

Operating Income

Operating income was $35.1 million, or 10.2% ofsalor fiscal 2012, as compared to $32.0 millien10.7% of sales, for fiscal 2011
$3.4 million increase in operating income for thelustrial segment resulted primarily from the additof the Vertex business, partially ofl
by a $0.3 million decrease in operating incometlier Water Treatment segment. Both segments weiginely impacted by the LIFO meth
of valuing inventory in fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011

Investment Income

Investment income was $0.1 million for fiscal 204rid $0.3 million in fiscal 2011. The decrease westment income was primarily due
lower cash and investment balances.

Provision for Income Taxes

Our effective income tax rate was 38.6% for fist@l2 compared to 37.1% for fiscal 2011. The higéeective tax rate for fiscal 2012 w
primarily due to decreased permanent tax benefiissamewhat higher effective state tax rates.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 20tas $35.5 million compared to $33.7 million isdal 2012 and $28.5 milliom fisca
2011 . Cash provided by operating activities inseghin fiscal 2013 by $1.8 milliodespite lower net income recorded, primarily duehi
$7.2 million noneash charge to earnings related to our withdrameah the multiemployer pension plan. In additionaihes in working capit
balances provided $2.1 million in cash in fiscal2@ompared to cash used of $1.9 million for wagkaapital in fiscal 2012 The change
working capital balances in fiscal 2013 was prifyadue to a decrease in trade receivables as wedl eeduction in income tax receive
balances due to lower estimated income tax paynmatie. Due to the nature of our operations, whiclutles purchases of large quantitie
bulk chemicals, the timing of purchases can rasutignificant changes in working capital and tksuiting operating cash flow. Historica
our cash requirements for working capital incrediseng the period from April through November asigtic soda inventory levels increas:
the majority of barges are received during thisquer

Cash used in financing activities was $4.9 milliorfiscal 2013 compared to $3.7 million in fisc&l12 and $6.9 million in fiscal 2011The

increase in cash used in financing activities sedl 2013 was primarily due to lower proceeds ftbmexercise of employee stock options
an increase in dividends paid during the fiscatyea
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Cash and investments available-for-sale of $49Momiat March 31, 2013 increased by $4.0 milliosy @mpared with April 1, 2012
primarily due to cash generated from operationscgeds from the exercise of employee stock optmusproceeds from the issuance of
shares of common stock through the Company's eraplsiock purchase plan, partially offset by camtgdenditures and dividend payme
Investments available-for-sale as of March 31, 288 April 1, 2012consisted of certificates of deposit with matusti@nging from thre
months to two years.

Capital expenditures were $26.7 million in fisc@ll3 , $20.1 million in fiscal 2012 and $12.4 miflian fiscal 2011. Significant capit:
expenditures in fiscal 2013 consisted of approxatya$19 million related to business expansion aratess improvement projects includ
our new Industrial facility and Water Treatment axpion, $2.6 million for regulatory and safety imypements, $1.4 million related to our r
corporate headquarters and $3.7 million for otheility improvements, truck and vehicle replacemantd returnable containers. Total ca|
spending in fiscal 2014 is currently projected éoapproximately $18 million. We expect cash balarared our cash flows from operations
be sufficient to fund our cash requirements indiR014.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2013, our Baoafr@®irectors increased our seamnual cash dividend by 6.3% to $0.34 per shama
$0.32 per share. We have paid cash dividends eanisly since 1985. Future dividend levels will lpendent upon our results of operati
financial position, cash flows and other factorg] avill be evaluated by our Board of Directors.

As part of our business growth strategy, we haggiiaed businesses and may pursue acquisitionsher setrategic relationships in the fut
that we believe will complement or expand our éxgbusinesses or increase our customer base. Péeteaur cash balances and cash f
from operations will be sufficient to fund our caslguirements including acquisitions or other sigat relationships for the foreseeable ful
We periodically evaluate opportunities to borrowmds or sell additional equity or debt securities dtvategic reasons or to further streng
our financial position.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table provides aggregate informatédyout our contractual payment obligations and #régds in which payments are due:

Payments Due by Period

More than
Contractual Obligation 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 5 Years Total
(In thousands)
Operating lease obligations  $ 1,142 $ 1,19¢ $ 1,10¢ $ 1,02C $ 95¢ $ 4947 $ 10,37:
Pension withdrawal liability (1) $ 195 % 467 $ 467 $ 467 $ 467 3 7,280 % 9,34:

(1) The amounts shown in the table above assumpayments made to CSS as a result of our withdrérewal the multiemployer pension pli
begin in November 2014. Such payments will contiansually for 20 years.

Critical Accounting Policies

In preparing the financial statements, we follovelUgenerally accepted accounting principles (“GAARhe preparation of these finant
statements requires us to make estimates and judgrtieat affect the reported amounts of assetsilitias, sales and expenses, and rel
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Weevaluate our estimates on angming basis. Our estimates are based on hist
experience and on various other assumptions tleabelieved to be reasonable under the circumstadodsal results may differ from the
estimates under different assumptions and condgitidfe consider the following policies to involvetimost judgment in the preparation of
financial statements.

Revenue Recognition - We recognize revenue when there is evidence tleattlstomer has agreed to purchase the producpyrite an
terms of the sale are fixed, the product has shipged title has passed to our customer, performaaseoccurred, and collection of
receivable is reasonably assured.

LIFO Reserve - Inventories are primarily valued at the lower oftcor market with cost being determined using tHeéOLmethod. We me
incur significant fluctuations in our LIFO reseraad, as a result, gross margins due primarily tinghs in the volumes on hand and the pe
unit cost of a single, largeslume component of our inventory. The price ofthiventory component fluctuates depending on tilariz:
between supply and demand. Management reviewsl|E@ teserve on a quarterly basis.
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Inventories not valued used the LIFO method araediht the lower of cost or market with cost baletermined using the FIFO method.

Goodwill and Infinite-life Intangible Assets - Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of aedubusinesses over the fair value
identifiable tangible net assets and identifiabkamgible assets purchased. Goodwill is testedaat lannually for impairment, and is testec
impairment more frequently if events or changesiinoumstances indicate that the asset might beineghalhe impairment test is perforn
using a twaostep process. In the first step, the fair valughef reporting unit is compared with the carryingoamt of the reporting un
including goodwill. If the estimated fair value lisss than the carrying amount of the reporting, uanit indication that goodwill impairme
exists and a second step must be completed in toddgtermine the amount of the goodwill impairméiany, which should be recorded
the second step, an impairment loss would be rézedtior any excess of the carrying amount of gporting unit's goodwill over the impli
fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair valwé goodwill is determined by allocating the faalwe of the reporting unit in a manner sin
to a purchase price allocation. The fair valueh&f teporting unit is determined using a discourtash flow analysis. Projecting discour
future cash flows requires us to make significastineates regarding future revenues and expensagcted capital expenditures, change
working capital and the appropriate discount rdtke projections also take into account severalofactncluding current and estima
economic trends and outlook, costs of raw materéaasideration of our market capitalization in @arison to the estimated fair values of
reporting units determined using discounted caslr #inalyses and other factors which are beyondantrol.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

See Item 8, “Note 1 - Nature of Business and Sicgmit Accounting Policies’dbf the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeat
information regarding recently adopted accountilagdards or accounting standards to be adoptdgkifuture.

ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK
We are subject to the risk inherent in the cyclicature of commodity chemical prices. However, wendt currently purchase forw:

contracts or otherwise engage in hedging activitigls respect to the purchase of commodity chermidale attempt to pass changes in mai
prices on to our customers; however, there aresaorances that we will be able to pass on theasesein the future.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of HawKims;

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Hawkins, Inc. and subsidiaries (the@2my) as of March 31, 2013 ¢
April 1, 2012, and the related consolidated statgmef income, comprehensive income, shareholéegsty, and cash flows for each of
years in the thre-year period ended March 31, 2013. In connectioh witr audits of the consolidated financial statetsieme also have audit
the financial statement schedule for each of tlees/n the three-year period ended March 31, 2I8t8d in schedule Il of this Form 10-We
also have audited the Company's internal contret émancial reporting as of March 31, 2013, bagedriteria established imternal Control
- Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission (COSO). The Compi
management is responsible for these consolidatedidial statements, for maintaining effective ing&icontrol over financial reporting, and
its assessment of the effectiveness of internalrabaver financial reporting, included in the aogeanying Management's Report on Inte
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsipilg to express an opinion on these consolidatehfiial statements and financial statet
schedule and an opinion on the Company's inten@tal over financial reporting based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audits to inbtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement and whether effective internal contreér financial reporting was maintained in all eral respects. Our audits of
consolidated financial statements included examginion a test basis, evidence supporting the amaoamds disclosures in the financ
statements, assessing the accounting principled asd significant estimates made by management,esatliating the overall financ
statement presentation. Our audit of internal adndver financial reporting included obtaining anderstanding of internal control o
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a neteveakness exists, and testing and evaluatiegdiésign and operating effectivenes
internal control based on the assessed risk. Oditsaalso included performing such other procedwagsve considered necessary in
circumstances. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financ
reporting and the preparation of financial statetmdor external purposes in accordance with gelyemicepted accounting principles
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (tpimeto the maintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdimpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accorédamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalssurance regarding prevention or timely deteafounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company's assets that could havaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @ttmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteageferred to above present fairly, in all materspects, the financial position of Hawk
Inc. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2013 andlApr2012, and the results of their operations thedr cash flows for each of the years in
threeyear period ended March 31, 2013, in conformityhwit S. generally accepted accounting principlesoAln our opinion, the financ
statement schedule referred to above, when comrsiderelation to the basic consolidated finanstatements taken as a whole, presents f
in all material respects, the information set fahrein. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Comparaintained, in all material respects, effec
internal control over financial reporting as of Mhar31, 2013, based on criteria establishethiernal Control - Integrated Framework (1992)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission.

/sl KPMG LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
May 30, 2013
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HAWKINS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per-share data)



March 31, 2013 April 1, 2012
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 28,71t 28,56¢
Investments available-for-sale 15,62t 12,21(
Trade receivables — less allowance for doubtfubants:
$469 for 2013 and $460 for 2012 35,92( 38,06¢
Inventories 28,20¢ 27,638
Income taxes receivable — 2,447
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,61¢ 1,93(
Total current assets 111,08: 110,85!
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT:
Land 8,03¢ 7,931
Buildings and improvements 68,26¢ 55,06¢
Machinery and equipment 50,38¢ 39,43.
Transportation equipment 16,15¢ 14,84
Office furniture and equipment including computgstems 10,20 10,027
153,05! 127,29¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 62,08 54,03
Net property, plant, and equipment 90,97+ 73,26"
OTHER ASSETS:
Goodwill 6,49¢ 6,49¢
Intangible assets — less accumulated amortization:
$2,398 for 2013 and $1,790 for 2012 7,67¢ 8,18¢
Long-term investments 5,597 5,13¢
Other 32t 141
Total other assets 20,09:¢ 19,96:
Total assets $ 222,14¢ 204,08:
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable — trade $ 18,51¢ 18,62:
Dividends payable 3,59 3,331
Accrued payroll and employee benefits 5,391 8,481
Deferred income taxes 2,55¢ 3,17(
Income tax payable 1,44¢ —
Other current liabilities 3,62¢ 2,67¢
Total current liabilities 35,12¢ 36,28¢
PENSION WITHDRAWAL LIABILITY 7,13¢ —
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 1,65°% 762
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 8,062 10,42:
Total liabilities 51,97¢ 47,47¢
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Common stock; authorized: 30,000,000 shares o638ad value; 10,495,427 and 10,430,87
shares issued and outstanding for 2013 and 204@2ectvely 52t 522
Additional paid-in capital 48,77¢ 45,16¢
Retained earnings 120,97« 111,03¢
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (10¢€) (129
Total shareholders’ equity 170,17: 156,60
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 222,14¢ 204,08:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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HAWKINS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except share and per-share data)

Sales
Cost of sales

Pension withdrawal

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Operating income
Investment income, net

Income from continuing operations before incometax

Provision for income taxes
Income from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax

Net income

Weighted average number of shares outstanding-basic

Weighted average number of shares outstandingedilut

Basic earnings per share:

Earnings per share from continuing operations
Earnings per share from discontinued operations

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share:

Earnings per share from continuing operations
Earnings per share from discontinued operations

Diluted earnings per share

Cash dividends declared per common share

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, 2013 April 1, 2012 April 3, 2011

350,38 $ 343,83 $ 297,64
(286,24)) (277,960) (235,739
(7,210) — —
56,93¢ 65,86¢ 61,90:
(31,600) (30,759 (29,94()
25,33( 35,10¢ 31,96:

84 14E 332

25,41 35,25¢ 32,29t
(8,306) (13,62¢) (11,98)
17,10 21,62¢ 20,31

18 1,057 —

17,12¢ $ 22,68 $ 20,31
10,464,82 10,339,39 10,260,13
10,541,14 10,408,57 10,352,63
1.6/ $ 2.0¢ $ 1.9¢

— 0.1C —

1.6/ $ 2.1¢ $ 1.9¢

16z $ 2.0 $ 1.9¢€

— 0.1C —

162 $ 216 $ 1.9€

0.6 $ 0.6/ $ 0.7¢
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HAWKINS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands, except share data)

Net income

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale inmrestts
Unrealized gain (loss) on post-retirement liability
Total other comprehensive income (loss)

Total comprehensive income

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, 2013 April 1, 2012

April 3, 2011

20,31«

(63)
(119

(182)

20,13:
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HAWKINS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands, except share data)

Common Stock Additional Accumulated Other Total
Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity
BALANCE — March 28, 2010 10,253,45 $ 51z % 39,027 $ 81,92: $ 37 % 121,49¢
Cash dividends declared (7,227) (7,222
Share-based compensation
expense 1,952 1,952
Tax benefit on share-based
compensation plans 281 281
Vesting of restricted stock 58,65: 3 3 —
Shares surrendered for
payroll taxes (4,939 (D) (197 (19¢)
Other comprehensive
income, net of tax (182) (182)
Net income 20,31« 20,31«
BALANCE — April 3, 2011 10,307,217 $ 51t $ 41,06 $ 95,01: $ (145 ¢ 136,44
Cash dividends declared (6,659 (6,659
Share-based compensation
expense 1,35( 1,35(
Tax benefit on share-based
compensation plans 69¢ 69¢
Vesting of restricted stock 18,66: 1 @ —
Shares surrendered for
payroll taxes (3,980 — (150 (150
Stock Options Exercised 85,33: 5 1,461 1,46¢€
ESPP Shares Issued 23,68: 1 751 752
Other comprehensive income, |
of tax 22 22
Net income 22,68¢ 22,68¢
BALANCE — April 1, 2012 10,430,87. $ 52z % 45,16¢ $ 111,03¢ $ (129 $ 156,60
Cash dividends declared (7,197 (7,197
Share-based compensation
expense 1,63( 1,63(
Tax benefit on share-based
compensation plans 51C 51C
Vesting of restricted stock 6,12( — (D) @
Stock Options Exercised 27,99¢ 1 514 51t
ESPP Shares Issued 30,43 2 957 95¢
Other comprehensive income,
net of tax 17 17
Net income 17,12¢ 17,12¢
BALANCE — March 31, 2013 10,495,42 $ 52t $ 48,77¢ $ 120,97 $ (106) $ 170,17:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HAWKINS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, 2013 April 1, 2012 April 3, 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 17,12¢ $ 22,68° $ 20,31«
Reconciliation to cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization 10,24¢ 8,45¢ 7,14¢
Deferred income taxes (2,98%) 3,08: (600)
Pension withdrawal 7,21( — —
Share-based compensation expense 1,621 1,35( 1,952
Loss from property disposals 152 2 127
Changes in operating accounts (using) providing,cas
net of effects of acquisition:
Trade receivables 2,14¢ (2,407%) (5,929
Inventories (579 1,31¢ (3,14))
Accounts payable (1,189 (1,84¢) 5,35¢
Accrued liabilities (1,319 343 15¢
Income taxes 3,89: (257) 2,52¢
Other (864) 947 61¢
Net cash provided by operating activities 35,47+ 33,68: 28,53
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant, and equipment (26,660) (20,05%) (12,427
Purchases of investments (18,755 (14,165 (14,210
Sale and maturities of investments 14,90( 15,27( 30,54
Proceeds from property disposals 23: 25E 14z
Acquisitions (100) (1,709 (25,500
Net cash used in investing activities (30,387 (20,40¢) (21,449
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash dividends paid (6,936 (6,417) (7,00
New shares issued 96¢ 752 —
Stock options exercised 51t 1,46¢ —
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation 51C 69¢ 281
Shares surrendered for payroll taxes — (150 (19¢)
Net cash used in financing activities (4,947) (3,650 (6,927
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 14¢ 9,62¢ 16€
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-
Beginning of period 28,56¢ 18,94( 18,77:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-
End of period $ 28,71F % 28,56t $ 18,94(
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION-
Cash paid during the year for income taxes $ 6,90C $ 10,78¢ $ 9,771
Noncash investing activities-
Acquisition purchase price in accounts payable $ — 3 — 3 1,70¢
Capital expenditures in accounts payable $ 1,401 $ 27¢  $ 1,45(

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Nature of Business and Significant Accouintg Policies

Nature of Business We have tworeportable segments: Industrial and Water TreatmEné¢ Industrial Group operates our Indus
segment and specializes in providing industrialneicals, products and services to industries suchgagulture, energy, electronics, fo
chemical processing, pulp and paper, pharmaceutivadlical device and plating. The group also mastufas and sells certain foguade
products, including our patented Cheese PHuglid phosphate, lactates and other blended pitsdiibe Water Treatment Group operates
Water Treatment segment and specializes in prayidihemicals, equipment and solutions for potabléekyamunicipal and industri
wastewater, industrial process water and residential swimming pool water. The group has rgmources and flexibility to treat syste
ranging in size from a single small well to a mutiillion-gallon-per-day facility.

Fiscal Year -Our fiscal year is a 52/53-week year ending on3haday closest to March 31. Our fiscal years emdacth 31, 2013 (iscal
2013") and April 1, 2012 (“fiscal 2012") were 52-gleyears. The fiscal year ended April 3, 2011 ¢dis2011") was a 53+eek year. The fisc
year ending on March 30, 201“fiscal 2014") will be a 52-week year.

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include ttimants of Hawkins, Inc. and its wholbwned subsidiarie
All intercompany transactions and accounts have leéiminated.

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in confeyrmith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresp(“*GAAP”) require:
management to make estimates and assumptionsffinattthe reported amounts of assets and liakslisied disclosure of contingent assets
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeatsl the reported amounts of revenues and expeéusieg the reported period. Actual res
could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition We recognize revenue when there is evidence tleatiistomer has agreed to purchase the producpyrittes ant
terms of the sale are fixed, the product has shipg®l title has passed to our customer, performaaseoccurred, and collection of
receivable is reasonably assured.

Shipping and Handling -All shipping and handling amounts billed to custesnare included in revenues. Costs incurred reltdeithe
shipping and the handling of products are incluidezbst of sales.

Fair Value Measurements The financial assets and liabilities that aremeasured and reported at fair value for each rieygpperioc
include marketable securities. There are no faluezaneasurements with respect to nonfinancial assetiabilities that are recognized
disclosed at fair value in our consolidated finahstatements on a recurring basis.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value #assified using the following hierarchy, which iased upon the transparency of inputs ti
valuation as of the measurement date:

Level 1: Valuation is based on observable inputs suchuased market prices (unadjusted) for identical @see liabilities in activ
markets.

Level 2: Valuation is based on inputs such as quoted mariees for similar assets or liabilities in aetimnarkets or other inputs that
observable for the asset or liability, either dileor indirectly, for substantially the full terof the financial instrument.

Level 3: Valuation is based upon other unobservable ingmatisare significant to the fair value measurement
In making fair value measurements, observable mal¥ea must be used when available. When inputs iessmeasure fair value fall with
different levels of the hierarchy, the level withivhich the fair value measurement is categorizedased on the lowest level input the
significant to the fair value measurement.
Cash Equivalents Cash equivalents include all liquid debt instrursefgrimarily cash funds, money market accounts @ertificates c

deposit) purchased with an original maturity ofedlnrmonths or less. The balances maintained atdi@aimstitutions may, at times, exct
federally insured limits.
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HAWKINS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Investments -Available-forsale securities consist of certificates of depasitl are valued at current market value, with treultimc
unrealized gains and losses excluded from earrindseported, net of tax, as a separate compofahiaceholders' equity until realized. £
impairment loss to reduce an investment's carrgimgunt to its fair market value is recognized icoime when a decline in the fair mai
value of an individual security below its cost arnying value is determined to be other than teraugor

Trade Receivables and Concentrations of Credit Rigkinancial instruments, which potentially subjecttos concentration of credit ri:
principally consist of trade receivables. We sell principal products to a large number of custanemany different industries. There are
concentrations of credit risk with a single custoritem a particular service or geographic area tald significantly impact us in the n
term. To reduce credit risk, we routinely assessfitancial strength of our customers. We recoréliowance for doubtful accounts to red
our receivables to an amount we estimate is cdlectrom our customers. Estimates used in deténgithe allowance for doubtful accou
are based on historical collection experience,erurtrends, aging of accounts receivable and piereealuations of our customers' finan
condition. We invest our excess cash balancemastin certificates of deposit and a money markevant at two separate financial instituti
where the cash balances may exceed federally imhdimits. The institutions are two of the largestmanercial banking institutions in t
country and both have maintained a AA credit rating

Inventories -Inventories, consisting primarily of finished goodse primarily valued at the lower of cost or reslizable value, with cc
being determined using the last-in, first-out (“OF method. The amount of inventory valued using fhlist-in, first-out (“FIFO”) methoc
represents approximately 14% of the total FIFO imegy balance at March 31, 2013.

Property, Plant and Equipment Property is stated at cost and depreciated or @edrover the lives of the assets, using the ditdige
method. Estimated lives are: 10 to 40 years faidimgs and improvements; 3 to 20 years for maehirand equipment; 3 to 1@ears fo
transportation equipment; and 3 to }@ars for office furniture and equipment includiogmputer systems. Leasehold improvement
depreciated over the lesser of their estimatedulibeés or the remaining lease term.

Significant improvements that add to productiveamdfy or extend the lives of properties are cajiéal. Costs for repairs and mainten:
are charged to expense as incurred. When propertetired or otherwise disposed of, the cost anata@® accumulated depreciation
amortization are removed from the accounts andalayed gains or losses are included in income.

We review the recoverability of longred assets to be held and used, such as propgsatyt and equipment, when events or chang
circumstances occur that indicate the carrying evadfi the asset group may not be recoverable, sacpr@onged industry downturn
significant reductions in projected future casiwBo The assessment of possible impairment is bas@dir ability to recover the carrying va
of the asset group from the expected futuretpreeash flows (undiscounted) of the related ojpamat If these cash flows are less thar
carrying value of such asset group, an impairmesg ivould be measured by the amount the carryihge vexceeds the fair value of the long
lived asset group. The measurement of impairmeqtires us to estimate future cash flows and theviue of longlived assets. No mater
long-lived assets were determined to be impairethddiscal 2013, 2012 or 2011.

Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of aedubusinesses over the fair value
identifiable tangible net assets and identifiabamngible assets purchased. Goodwill is testedaat lannually for impairment, and is testec
impairment more frequently if events or changesiioumstances indicate that the asset might beineghaThe impairment test is perforn
using a twostep process. In the first step, the fair valuehaf reporting unit is compared with the carryingoamt of the reporting un
including goodwill. If the estimated fair value lisss than the carrying amount of the reporting, wanit indication that goodwill impairme
exists and a second step must be completed in toditermine the amount of the goodwill impairméhany, which should be recorded
the second step, an impairment loss would be rézedrior any excess of the carrying amount of gorting unit's goodwill over the impli
fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair valwé goodwill is determined by allocating the faalue of the reporting unit in a manner sin
to a purchase price allocation. The fair valuehaf teporting unit is determined using a discourtash flow analysis. Projecting discour
future cash flows requires us to make significastineates regarding future revenues and expensagcted capital expenditures, change
working capital and the appropriate discount rdtee projections also take into account severalofactncluding current and estima
economic trends and outlook, costs of raw mater@asideration of our market capitalization in garison to the estimated fair values of
reporting units determined using discounted caslt inalyses and other factors which are beyondanirol.
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HAWKINS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Our primary identifiable intangible assets includestomer lists, trade secrets, mmmpete agreements, trademarks, and trade |
acquired in previous business acquisitions. Idifitié intangibles with finite lives are amortizeddathose identifiable intangibles w
indefinite lives are not amortized. The values g#sd to the intangible assets with finite lives @eing amortized on average c
approximately 14 yearsldentifiable intangible assets that are subjearhortization are evaluated for impairment whenewvents or chang
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amauagy not be recoverable. Identifiable intangibleestsgot subject to amortization are teste:
impairment annually or more frequently if eventsraat. The impairment test consists of a comparisothe fair value of the intangible as
with its carrying amount.

We completed step one of our annual goodwill intpaint evaluation, along with an impairment testndifite-life intangible assets, duri
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013 and determineat thur reporting units' fair value substantialleaded their carrying value. Accordingly, ¢
two of the impairment analysis was not requiredpdimrment tests were also completed in the fourthrtgus of fiscal 2012 and 2011, wh
resulted in no impairment charges for either oséhfiscal years.

Income Taxes 4n the preparation of our consolidated financiatetents, the calculation of income taxes by manageéis based upon 1
estimated effective rate applicable to operatinguits for the full fiscal year. This includes estiing the current tax liability as well
assessing differences resulting from differentttrest of items for tax and book accounting purpo3éese differences result in deferred
assets and liabilities, which are recorded on tilarite sheet. These assets and liabilities argzathtegularly and management assesst
likelihood that deferred tax assets will be recedeirom future taxable income. We record any irgeamd penalties related to income taxe
income tax expense in the statements of income.

The effect of income tax positions are recognizely i those positions are more likely than notb&ing sustained. Changes in recogn
or measurement are made as facts and circumstehapge.

Stock-Based CompensationWe account for stockased compensation on a fair value basis. The agihgrant date fair value of ei
stockbased award is recognized in expense over thesitgjsiervice period (generally the vesting periddje estimated fair value of e:
option is calculated using the Black-Scholes oppaoing model. Nornvested share awards are recorded as compensapensexover tt
requisite service periods based on the market \vaiube date of grant.

Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) are computed bigidig net income by the weightedrerage number of comm
shares outstanding. Diluted EPS are computed hglidg/net income by the weightedrerage number of common shares outstanding img
the incremental shares assumed to be issued upaxéhicise of stock options and the incrementaleshassumed to be issued as perforn
units and restricted stock. Basic and diluted ER&walculated using the following:

March 31, 2013 April 1, 2012 April 3, 2011
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic 10,464,82 10,339,39 10,260,13
Dilutive impact of stock options, performance un#ed restricted stock 76,32 69,18: 92,49¢
Weighted average common shares outstanding — dilute 10,541,14 10,408,57 10,352,63

There were no shares or stock options excluded tfmrcalculation of weighted average common shimediluted EPS for fiscal 201
2012 or 2011.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitieswe do not have any freestanding or embedded demgaand it is our practice to not er
into contracts that contain them.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements -

Comprehensive Income - In June 2011, the FASB amended its accounting gaildo increase the prominence of items reportenthe
comprehensive income (OCI). The guidance requinespresentation of the components of net income,ctmponents of OCI and tc
comprehensive income either in a single continustagement of comprehensive income or in two sepdrat consecutive statements.
guidance was effective for us beginning with oscéil 2013 financial statements. We have electeskptation of two separate but conseci
statements.
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HAWKINS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Intangibles- Goodwill and Other - In September 2011, the FASB issued amended guidancgoodwill impairment testing to allc
companies the alternative to first assess quakdtctors to determine whether it is necessargetdorm the twostep quantitative goodw
impairment test. If, as a result of the qualitatagsessment, an entity determines that it is nikeéHthannot that the fair value of a report
unit is less than its carrying amount, the quatiaimpairment test is required. Otherwise, ndlfar testing is required. The amendment
effective for us beginning in fiscal 2013.

Note 2 — Business Combinations

In fiscal 2011, we acquired substantially all of #ssets of Vertex Chemical Corporation, Novel W@shinc. and R.H.A. Corporation,
(collectively, “Vertex”). We paid cash of $25.5 fioh at closing and assumed certain liabilitie&/eftex. The purchase price was revised to
$27.2 million to reflect a final working capital jagtment of $1.7 million , which was paid in edfigcal 2012. In connection with the
acquisition we incurred acquisition related costsrd fiscal 2011 of $0.7 million , which were reded as selling, general and administrative
expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Note 3 — Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

The following table presents information about financial assets and liabilities that are measatddir value on a recurring basis as of
March 31, 2013 and April 1, 2012, and indicatesf#ievalue hierarchy of the valuation techniquébzaed to determine such fair value.

Description

March 31,
(In thousands) 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash $ 28,71t $ 28,71t % — 3 —
Certificates of deposit 21,22: — 21,22: —
Money market securities — — — —
Description April 1,
(In thousands) 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash $ 28,00¢ $ 28,00¢ $ — 3 —
Certificates of deposit 17,34¢ — 17,34¢ —
Money market securities 56C 56C — —

Our financial assets that are measured at fairevatua recurring basis are certificates of deftSiD's”), with maturities ranging frorthree
months to two yearwhich fall within valuation technique Level 2. TR®'s are classified as investments in current assel noncurrent ass
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of Marct2813, the CD's have a fair value of $15.6 milliorcurrent assets and $5.6 milliam
noncurrent assets.

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuads approximates fair value, as maturities areettmonths or lessWe did not hav
any financial liability instruments subject to regng fair value measurements as of March 31, 288 April 1, 2012.

The contractual maturities of available-for-saleusities at March 31, 2013 and April 1, 2012 arevsh in the table below:

March 31, 2013 April 1, 2012
Amortized Unrealized Amortized Unrealized
(In thousands) Cost Fair Value Gain/(loss) Cost Fair Value Gain/(loss)
Within one year $ 1561f $ 15,62 $ 10 $ 12,208 $ 12,21 $ 5
Between one and two years 5,59( 5,597 7 5,14¢ 5,13¢ (6)
Total available-for-sale securities $ 21,208 $ 21,22: $ 17 $ 1735 $ 17,34¢ $ @

Realized gains and losses were not material foaffid013, 2012 and 2011.
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Note 4 — Inventories

Inventories at March 31, 2013 and April 1, 2012sisted of the following:

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Inventory (FIFO basis) $ 35,28. % 35,07:
LIFO reserve (7,079 (7,439
Net inventory $ 28,20¢ $ 27,63:

The FIFO value of inventories accounted for undher EIFO method was $30.3 million at March 31, 2@t®l $30.6 million at April 1,
2012. The remainder of the inventory was valuedaowbunted for under the FIFO method.

We decreased the LIFO reserve by $0.4 milliofiscal 2013 due primarily to decreased volumksestain bulk chemicals in inventory
the end of the year. In fiscal 2012 we increased O reserve by $1.6 milliodue primarily to higher volumes and the mix of ballemical
in inventory at the end of the year.

Note 5 — Goodwill and Other Identifiable Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill wasdollows:

(In thousands) Amount

Balance as of April 3, 2011 $ 6,231
Fiscal 2012 adjustment 264

Balance as of April 1, 2012 6,49t

Fiscal 2013 adjustment —

Balance as of March 31, 2013 $ 6,49t

All of our goodwill relates to our Industrial opéirey segment. The increase in goodwill during fi2@12 relates to the finalization of the
determination of the fair value of inventory acguiras part of the acquisition of Vertex.

A summary of our intangible assets as of March2®1,3 and April 1, 2012 were as follows:

2013 2012
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross Amount Amortization Net Gross Amount Amortization Net

(In thousands)
Finite-life intangible assets:

Customer relationships $ 550¢ $ (981) $ 4527 % 550¢ $ (706) $ 4,80z

Trademark 1,24C (274) 96¢€ 1,24( (150) 1,09C

Trade secrets 962 (640 322 862 (527) 341

Carrier relationships 80C 177 623 80C (96) 704

Other finite-life intangible assets 33¢ (326 13 33¢ (317) 22
Total finite-life intangible assets 8,84¢ (2,399 6,451 8,74¢ (1,790 6,95¢
Indefinite-life intangible assets 1,227 — 1,227 1,227 — 1,227
Total intangib|e assets, net $ 10,07¢ $ (2,395) $ 7,67¢ $ 9,97¢ $ (1,79() $ 8,18¢

Intangible asset amortization expense was $0.6omilluring fiscal 2013, $0.6 million during fisca012, and $0.3 millioruring fisca
2011.

The estimated future amortization expense for iflebte intangible assets during the next five ypearas follows:



(In thousands)
Estimated amortization expense

2015

2016

612

$
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Note 6 — Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Ls3)

Components of accumulated other comprehensive iadtoas) on our balance sheet, net of tax, wefellasvs:

(In thousands) 2013 2012
Unrealized gain (loss) on:
Available-for-sale investments $ 11 % (1)
Post-retirement plan liability adjustments (119 (122)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (106) $ (129

Note 7 — Share-Based Compensation

Sock Option Awards. Our Board of Directors has approved a long-terceimive equity compensation arrangement for ouctxee
officers. This long-term incentive arrangement e for the grant of nonqualified stock optionatthest at the end of a thrgear period an
expire no later than 10 years after the grant déieused the Black-Scholes valuation model to ed@rthe fair value of options granted under
this arrangement. No stock options were grantethddiscal 2013, 2012 or 2011.

The following table represents the stock optionvagtfor fiscal 2013:

Total Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Aggregate Average Aggregate
Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic
(In thousands, except share data) Shares Price Value Shares Price Value
Outstanding at beginning of year 46,66 $ 19.01 $ 1,547 9,33: $ 15.4: % 32(C
Granted — — — —
Vested — — 37,33: 19.9(
Exercised (27,999 18.41 (27,999 18.41
Forfeited or expired — — — —
Outstanding at end of year 18,66¢ $ 19.9C $ 66% 18,66¢ $ 19.9C $ 66%

The weighted average remaining life of all outstagand exercisable options is 6.2 years.

No expense was recorded in fiscal 2013 relatetig¢osalue of stock options. Expense related to gleevof stock options wek).1 millior
and $0.2 millionfor fiscal years 2012 and 2011, respectively, artglly all of which was recorded in SG&A experieethe Consolidate
Statements of Income. The total fair value of amigested during fiscal 2013 was $0.2 million coregao $0.1 milliorduring fiscal 2012 ar
$0.2 million during fiscal 2011. There was no umrgtized compensation expense related to outstastiieg options as of March 31, 2013.

Performance-Based Restricted Stock Units. Our Board of Directors has approved a performdrased equity compensation arrangemer
our executive officers. This performance-basednaeaent provides for the grant of performabesed restricted stock units that repres
possible future issuance of restricted shares nicommon stock based on our pee-income target for the applicable fiscal yedre Tctue
number of restricted shares to be issued to eamtuéixe officer will be determined when our finaddncial information becomes available &
the applicable fiscal year and will be between zdrares and 47,228hares in the aggregate for fiscal 2013. Theictstk shares issued v
fully vest twoyears after the last day of the fiscal year on Wiiee performance is based. We are recording thgensation expense for
outstanding performance share units and then-ctet/eestricted stock over the life of the awards.
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The following table represents the restricted stadivity for fiscal 2013:

Weighted-

Average Grant

Shares Date Fair Value
Outstanding at beginning of year 33,32: % 35.3¢
Granted 29,92: 33.01
Vested — —
Forfeited or expired — —
Outstanding at end of year 63,24 $ 34.2¢

The weighted averaged grant date fair value ofiotstl shares granted in fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2044 $33.01 , $35.39 , and $25.81
respectively. We recorded compensation expenseedormance-based restricted stock of approximakélt million , $0.8 million andb1.€
million for fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, sally all of which was recorded in selling, gesleand administrative ("SG&A
expense in the Consolidated Statements of Incoimetdtal fair value of performance-based restristedk units vested in fiscal 2013 waes¢
compared to $0.3 million in fiscal 2012.

Until the performancéased restricted stock units result in the issuarficestricted stock, the amount of expense recbedech period
dependent upon our estimate of the number of shibagsvill ultimately be issued and our then cutremmmon stock price. Upon issuanc
restricted stock, we record compensation expensg the remaining vesting period using the awarde ddbsing price. Unrecogniz
compensation expense related to non-vested restrittare units as of March 31, 2013 was $1.2 millitd is expected to be recognized o\
weighted average period of 1.0 years.

The benefits of tax deductions in excess of reasghcompensation costs (excess tax benefits) emeded as a change in additional peid-
capital rather than a deduction of taxes paid. dtm@unt of excess tax benefit recognized and redoird@dditional paida capital resultin
from share-based compensation cost was $0.5 miliidiscal 2013, $0.7 million in fiscal 2012 and.$0nillion in 2011.

Restricted Stock Awards.  As part of their retainer, the Board of Directoeseives restricted stock for their Board servidd®e restricte
stock awards are expensed over the requisite gepniod, which begins on the date of issuance et on the date of the next Anr
Meeting of Shareholders, based on the market vahuthe date of grant. The following table represehe Board's restricted stock activity
fiscal 2013:

Weighted-

Average Grant

Shares Date Fair Value
Outstanding at beginning of period 6,12 $ 34.31
Granted 5,72¢ 36.6¢
Vested (6,120) 34.31]
Forfeited or expired — —
Outstanding at end of period 572¢ % 36.6¢

Annual expense related to the value of restricteckswas $0.2 million for each of fiscal 2013, 2Gr®d 2011, all of which was recorded in
SG&A expense in the Consolidated Statements offfrecdJnrecognized compensation expense relatednvested restricted stock awards as
of March 31, 2013 was $0.1 million and is exped¢tele recognized over a weighted average peri@d3ofyears.
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Note 8 — Profit Sharing, Employee Stock OwnershipEmployee Stock Purchase and Pension Plans

Substantially all of our nobargaining unit employees are eligible to partitépa a company sponsored profit sharing plars tiur polic
to fund all costs accrued. Contributions are madeua discretion subject to a maximum amount alldwader the Internal Revenue Cc
Beginning in fiscal 2013, the profit sharing plamtribution level for each employee will depend ngate of hire, with those employees h
after April 1, 2012 eligible to receive a contritmut that is 50%of the contribution made for employees hired obefiore April 1, 2012. O1
contribution to the profit sharing plan for fis@013 was 5%f each employee's eligible compensation for ermg#syhired on or before April
2012. In addition to the changes in the profit Bitaplan for fiscal 2013, we introduced a 401(lkarpthat will allow employees to contrib
pre-tax earnings up to the maximum amount allowsdeu the Internal Revenue Code, with an employdcimaf up to 5% of the employee’
eligible compensation. Our contribution to the frsfaring plan was 15%f each employee's eligible compensation in eadiscédl years 201
and 2011.

We have an employee stock ownership plan (“ESOBVEeNng substantially all of our ndmargaining unit employees. Contributions
made at our discretion subject to a maximum amallowved under the Internal Revenue Code. Beginmirfigcal 2013, the ESOP contribut
level for each employee will depend upon date of,hiith those employees hired after April 1, 2@ligible to receive a contribution tha
50% of the contribution made for employees hiredooefore April 1, 2012. Our contribution to th&@P for fiscal 2013 was 5%f eacl
employee's eligible compensation for employeesdhine or before April 1, 2012. Our contribution teetESOP was 5% of each employee’
eligible compensation in each of the fiscal yedr$2and 2011.

We have an employee stock purchase plan (“ESE®V¢ring substantially all of our employees. ThéPPSallows employees to purch
newly-issued shares of the Compangbmmon stock at a discount from market, with mpleyee contribution match from the Company. F
to fiscal 2012, this plan had a monthly employetahaf 75% of each employee’s contribution, up tmaximum of $37%er month, with th
ESPP shares of the Company purchased on the opértma

In fiscal 2012, Vertex employees participated iAGd(k) plan that included an employer match of oB% of the employesg’eligible
compensation and a discretionary Company contohuffhe total company contribution to this plan v&s2 million. Beginning in fisce
2013, Vertex employees are included within the Camys retirement plans outlined above.

The following represents the contribution expemsdtie profit sharing, ESOP, ESPP and 401(k) planiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011:

Benefit Plan 2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)

Profit sharing $ 1,20¢ $ 2,61¢ $ 2,67¢

401(K) matching contributions 1,20¢ — —

ESOP 1,20z 802 81F

ESPP 28¢ 262 64¢

Vertex plan — 17t —
Total contribution expense $ 390 $ 3,858 % 4,13¢

Multiemployer pension plan . In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, we conclddeegotiations with twacollective bargaining units
discontinue our participation in the Central Stagsutheast and Southwest Areas Pension Fund (“C6%He plan”),a collectively bargaine
multiemployer pension plan. Our participation i thlan was pursuant to tvoollective bargaining agreements that each expireétebruar
28, 2013. Our contributions to the plan were deteech in accordance with the provisions of the atil@ bargaining agreements and v
based on a fixed payment per employee for each weeked. In accordance with accounting guidance hawee recorded the required ¢
contributions to the CSS as an expense in the gh@raurred.

The risks of participating in a multiemployer panmsiplan are different from the risks of participgtiin a singleemployer plan in tt
following respects: (1) assets contributed to atiemiployer fund by each employer are comingled vilib assets contributed by ot
employers and are used to finance the benefitsnplayees of all participating employers; (2) to #adent that the assets of the fund
insufficient to meet the fund's obligations to aflthe employees whose accrued benefits are vestedplan accrues arufifunded veste
liability”; (3) if a participating employer withdraws from thenfl (for example, stops contributing to the plahg fund is required by law
charge a proportional share of the unfunded vdgbdity to the withdrawing employer. This is refed to as a withdrawal liability. As a res
of the extent to which CSS is underfunded, CS®issiclered to be in “critical statug’ defined by the Pension Protection Act of 2006s€k
upon the most recent information available from titustees of CSS, our withdrawal liability (that @ur share of the plan's unfunded ve
benefit liability) was estimated to be
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approximately $10.0 million if the withdrawal hadowrred in calendar year 2012, an increase fromstimate of approximately $7.9 milligh
the withdrawal had occurred in calendar year 2011.

Accounting guidance for multiemployer pension planavides that a withdrawal liability should be seded if circumstances that give |
to an obligation become probable and estimabl&stal 2013, we discontinued our participation i8&and as a result we recorded atpre-
charge of $7.2 million (approximately $4.5 milliafter tax, or $0.4®er share, fully diluted). This charge represemésdiscounted value of ¢
estimated withdrawal payment obligation and hasilveeorded as a charge to cost of sales in ousstridusegment.

Payment of our share of the unfunded vested belnfitity may be made over 20 years and is subjea cap. At the end of the 3@al
period we would have no further liability, evenoifir share of the unfunded vested benefit liabliad not yet been paid in full. The anr
payment amount is determined based on (1) the geeramber of work hours reported to the pension piast during the 8onsecutive yea
with the highest number of contribution work weeksthe 10 year period prior to the withdrawal, multiplied §2) the highest hour
contribution rate during the 10 -year period. Wéneate the aggregate cash payments to be madeaioatmproximately $9.3 million ot
$467,000 per year beginning some time in fiscal4204//e have accrued the discounted value of thatmpay obligation in the Pensiol
withdrawal” line item on the Consolidated Statemefiiincome for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013

We made contributions to CSS of approximately $0ilion in each of fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011. Effectiverdial, 2013, we establist
defined-contribution retirement benefits to ouramemployees that are similar to those benefiteeatiyy offered to our nomnion employee
Contributions to this plan for fiscal 2013 were rioat.

Note 9 — Commitments and Contingencies
Leases —We have various operating leases for primarilydings and land on which some of our operationda@ed. Future minimum
lease payments due under operating leases withital term of one year or more at March 31, 2048 as follows:

(In thousands) 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter
Minimum lease payment $ 1,14 $ 1,19¢ $ 1,10¢ $ 1,02C $ 95¢ $ 4,947

Total rental expense for the fiscal years 201322&d 2011 was as follows:

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Minimum rentals $ 8l $ 617 $ 552
Contingent rentals 11C 10z 114
Total rental expense $ 92¢ % 71¢ 9 66€

Litigation - In the first quarter of fiscal 2013, we enteredoirat settlement agreement with ICL Performance RatsduP (“ICL"), a
chemical supplier to us, pursuant to which we milituasolved the previously disclosed litigationdaall disputes among us. The settler
agreement provided for a cash payment by us todf@d. provided that both parties enter into new @mtsér for the supply by ICL of cert:
chemicals to us. Our obligations under the settignagreement resulted in a $3.2 million charger®tax income recorded in cost of s:
(approximately $2.0 million or $0.18er share, fully diluted, after tax) in the firaiagter of fiscal 2013, which was recorded in owtustria
segment.

We are a party from time to time in litigation @mig in the ordinary course of our business. To datieer litigation has not had a mate
effect on us. Legal costs associated with suchersattre expensed as incurred.

Asset Retirement Obligatior- We have threéeases of land and at the end of the lease terme(dly 2023 for one lease and 2018 for the o
two leases if the leases are not renewed), we aapecified amount of time to remove the propenty lauildings. At the end of the specified
amount of time, anything that remains on the lagcbines the property of the lessor, and the lessothe option to either maintain the
property or remove the property at our expenseh@e not been able to reasonably estimate thedhie of the asset retirement obligations,
primarily due to the combination of the followingctors: The leases do not expire in the near futueehave a history of extending the leases
with the lessors and currently intend to do saxatration of the lease periods; the lessors dchawe a history of terminating leases with their
tenants; and because it is more likely than ndttti@buildings will have value at the end of thade life and therefore, may not be removed b
either
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the lessee or the lessor. Therefore, in accordaitheaccounting guidance related to asset retirémed environmental obligations we have
recorded an asset retirement obligation as of Maicl2013. We will continue to monitor the factetsrounding the requirement to record an
asset retirement obligation and will recognizeftiievalue of a liability in the period in whichii incurred and a reasonable estimate can be
made.

Note 10 — Income Taxes

The provisions for income taxes for fiscal 201312@&nd 2011 are as follows:

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Federal — current $ 8,961 $ 8,632 $ 9,81¢
State — current 2,415 2,54¢ 2,531
Total current 11,38 11,17¢ 12,34¢
Federal — deferred (2,46€) 2,79¢ (69)
State — deferred (600) 31¢€ (299)
Total deferred (3,06¢€) 3,112 (36%)
Total provision $ 8,31¢ % 14,29C $ 11,98

During fiscal 2013 we amended previously filed Ueleral tax returns resulting in an increase o8%0illion in the benefits related to t
domestic manufacturing deduction and investmentct@dits, which positively impacted our tax rate fbe year. Reconciliations of 1
provisions for income taxes, based on income fromtinuing operations, to the applicable federatustey income tax rate of 35%re liste:
below.

2013 2012 2011

Statutory federal income tax 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
State income taxes, net of federal deduction 48% 5.C% 4.7%
ESOP dividend deduction on allocated shares (1.0% (0.7)% (1.2%
Domestic production deduction (2.7% (0.9% (1.9%
Impact of amended tax returns (3.3% — % — %
Other — net (0.2% 0.2% (0.)%

Total 32.7% 38.€ % 37.1%

The tax effects of items comprising our net defétex asset (liability) as of March 31, 2013 andi”Ap, 2012 are as follows:

(In thousands) 2013 2012
Deferred tax assets:
Trade receivables $ 18¢ $ 184
Stock compensation accruals 77€ 601
Pension withdrawal liability 2,90z —
Other accruals 1,031 75€
Other 69 82
Total deferred tax assets $ 4,96 $ 1,62%
Deferred tax liabilities:
Inventories $ (3,319 $ (3,55¢6)
Prepaid (525) (703
Excess of tax over book depreciation (12,389 (120,807
Amortization of intangibles (359 (149
Total deferred tax liabilities $ (15,589 $ (15,215
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (10,617 $ (13,59
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As of March 31, 2013, the Company has determinad itis more likely than not that the deferred tssets at March 31, 2013 will
realized either through future taxable income oersals of taxable temporary differences. As of dad1, 2013 and April 1, 2012, there w
no unrecognized tax benefits. Accordingly, a tabrgaonciliation from beginning to ending periodsbt provided.

We are subject to U.S. federal income tax as welhaome tax of multiple state jurisdictions. Th& years beginning with our fiscal y
ended March 29, 2009 remain open to examinatiorthbylnternal Revenue Service, and with few excegtistate and local income
jurisdictions.

Note 11 — Discontinued Operations

During the fiscal year ended March 29, 2009, weeadrto sell our inventory and entered into a margedgreement regarding the busir
of our Pharmaceutical segment, which provided plhaeutical chemicals to retail pharmacies and sstalle pharmaceutical manufactur
We have no remaining obligations to fulfill undaetagreement. The results of the Pharmaceuticadesgighave been reported as discontil
operations for all periods presented.

Note 12 — Segment Information

We have twaeportable segments: Industrial and Water Treatniérg accounting policies of the segments are dheesas those descrit
in the summary of significant accounting polici®soduct costs and expenses for each segment ad basactual costs incurred along \
cost allocation of shared and centralized functidie evaluate performance based on profit or lom® foperations before income taxes
including nonrecurring gains and losses. Reportabgments are defined by product and type of custoBegments are responsible for
sales, marketing and development of their prodacid services. The segments do not have separaterdicr), administration, custon
service or purchasing functions. There are no segment sales and no operating segments have ggsrgated. Given our nature, it is
practical to disclose revenues from external custsmior each product or each group of similar potsluNo single customer's reven
amounted to 10% or more of our total revenue. We lane customer in our Industrial segment thatesgmted 10.3%f Industrial segme
sales. Sales are primarily within the United Stated all assets are located within the United State

Water

Reportable Segments Industrial Treatment Total

(In thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2013:
Sales $ 248,55t % 101,83. $ 350,38
Gross profit 28,87¢ 28,05¢ 56,93¢
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 19,92: 11,68: 31,60¢
Operating income 8,95¢ 16,37¢ 25,33(
Identifiable assets* $ 143,82° $ 25,44¢  $ 169,27

Fiscal Year Ended April 1, 2012:
Sales $ 251,45, % 92,38: $ 343,83«
Gross profit 40,357 25,51 65,86¢
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 19,80¢ 10,95« 30,75¢
Operating income 20,55: 14,557 35,10¢
Identifiable assets* $ 129,78. $ 23,54: $ 153,32!

Fiscal Year Ended April 3, 2011:
Sales $ 208,72: % 88,917 $ 297,64
Gross profit 36,93¢ 24,96¢ 61,90:
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 19,82¢ 10,11: 29,94(
Operating income 17,11¢( 14,85 31,96:
Identifiable assets* $ 121,25( $ 21,13¢ $ 142,38t

* Unallocated assets consisting primarily of cash@ash equivalents, investments and prepaid expeveses$52.9 milliorat March 31, 201
$48.0 million at April 1, 2012 and $41.7 million April 3, 2011. Additionally, assets associatedwiite
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discontinued operations of the Pharmaceutical sagmere zero at March 31, 2013, $1.2 million atiApr 2012 and $0.9 milliomt April 3,
2011.

In fiscal 2013, gross profit for our Industrial segnt was negatively impacted by a $7.2 million {fae) charge related to our withdrawal
from a multiemployer pension plan (see Note 8 fottfer discussion) as well as a $3.2 million (e} tcharge related to a legal settlement (se

Note 9 for further discussior

Note 13 — Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unautkd)

(In thousands, except per share data) Fiscal 2013
First Second Third Fourth
Sales $ 90,09¢ $ 87,16( $ 85,527 $ 87,601
Gross profit 15,301 19,19¢ 8,12¢ 14,30
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 8,22 7,45¢ 7,611 8,301
Operating income 7,08( 11,74: 50¢ 6,00(
Income from continuing operations, net of tax 4,36¢ 7,23( 1,34¢ 4,16
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 18 — — —
Net income $ 4,38: % 7,230 % 1,348 $ 4,16¢
Basic net income per share $ 04z $ 0.6 % 0.1z $ 0.4C
Diluted net income per share $ 04: $ 0.6¢ $ 0.1: $ 0.3¢
Fiscal 2012
First Second Third Fourth

Sales $ 88,59 $ 87.87( $ 84,16( $ 83,21(
Gross profit 17,921 18,75( 15,67¢ 13,51:
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 7,851 7,84¢ 7,16: 7,89¢
Operating income 10,07( 10,90¢ 8,51¢ 5,617
Income from continuing operations, net of tax 6,35: 6,711 5,28¢ 3,27:
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 374 184 267 232
Net income $ 6,727 $ 6,901 $ 555 $ 3,50¢
Basic net income per share $ 0.6 $ 067 $ 052/ $ 0.34
Diluted net income per share $ 0.6 $ 067 $ 05 $ 0.34

In the first quarter of fiscal 2013, we recorde®iBa2 million (pretax) charge related to a legal settlement (see Bléoe further discussion)
In the third quarter of fiscal 2013, we recordefira2 million (pre-tax) charge related to our wittadal from a multiemployer pension plan (see
Note 8 for further discussion). Both items negalivimpacted gross profi
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this AnnBaport on Form 1@k, we conducted an evaluation, under supervisicth \&ith the
participation of management, including the chief¢@xive officer and chief financial officer, of tieéfectiveness of the design and operatic
our disclosure controls and procedures pursuafutes 13a-15(f) and 15b85(f) of the Exchange Act. Based upon that evabumatour chie
executive officer and chief financial officer conded that our disclosure controls and procedureseffiective. Disclosure controls ¢
procedures are defined by Rules 13a-15(e) andlbbe) of the Exchange Act as controls and othecgmtores that are designed to ensure
information required to be disclosed by us in répdiled with the SEC under the Exchange Act isorded, processed, summarized
reported within the time periods specified in tHeCS rules and forms. Disclosure controls and gtoes include, without limitation, contr
and procedures designed to ensure that informagiquired to be disclosed by us in reports filedarrttie Exchange Act is accumulated
communicated to our management, including our pradexecutive and principal financial officers, merson performing similar functions,
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finangal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@porting as defined in Rules 13a-1"

() and 15d15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act. Our internahtrol over financial reporting is designed to\pde reasonable assura
regarding the reliability of financial reporting cathe preparation of financial statements for exdkpurposes in accordance with gene
accepted accounting principles. Our internal cdntreer financial reporting includes those policiand procedures that (1) pertain
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detadurately and fairly reflect the transactions aligpositions of our assets; (2) pro\
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeelcessary to permit preparation of the findustéements in accordance with gene
accepted accounting principles, and that our rés@ipd expenditures are being made only in accoedaith authorizations of our managen
and directors; and (3) provide reasonable assunayarding prevention or timely detection of unawited acquisition, use or dispositior
our assets that could have a material effect ofinbacial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Projections of
evaluation of the effectiveness of internal contreér financial reporting to future periods arejeubto the risk that the controls may bec:
inadequate because of changes in conditions, bthtbalegree of compliance with the policies orcpaures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of munah control over financial reporting as of Ma&h 2013, based on the critel
described ifnternal Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizat{t@®S0O”") of the Treadwa
Commission. Based on this assessment, managemeantelsethat our internal control over financial ogjing was effective as d¥larch 31
2013.

Our independent registered public accounting firas lissued an attestation report on our internatrebover financial reporting ft
March 31, 2013 . That attestation report is se¢hfanmediately following this management report.

/sl Patrick H. Hawkins /sl Kathleen P. Pepski
Patrick H. Hawkins Kathleen P. Pepski

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
and Treasurer

May 30, 2013 May 30, 2013

Chief Executive Officer and President
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Attestation Report of Registered Public Accounting=irm

The attestation report required under this ItemiSAcontained in Item 8 of this Annual Report on KlQinder the caption Report o
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”

Changes in Internal Control Procedures

There was no change in our internal control ouaaritial reporting during the fourth quarter of §s2013that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, our interoantrol over financial reporting.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not Applicable
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PART III
Certain information required by Part Ill is incorpted by reference from Hawkins' definitive Proxtat8ment for the Annual Meeting

Shareholders to be held on August 1, 2013 (th@l'32Proxy Statement”). Except for those portiorscefjrally incorporated in this Form 10-
by reference to the 2013 Proxy Statement, no gitbeions of the 2013 Proxy Statement are deemée fided as part of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERANCE

Our executive officers, their ages and offices hatdof May 24, 2013 are set forth below:

Name Age Office

Patrick H. Hawkins 42 Chief Executive Officer and President

Kathleen P. Pepski 58 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasu
Richard G. Erstad 49 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Thomas J. Keller 53 Vice President — Water Treatment Group
Theresa R. Moran 50 Vice President — Quality and Support

John R. Sevenich 55 Vice President — Industrial Group

Patrick H. Hawkins was appointed to serve as our Chief Executive &ffamd President in March 2011. He had previousgntpromoted
the position of President in March 2010 as parthef Board's succession planning efforts. He joithedCompany in 1992 and served as
Business Director - Food and Pharmaceuticals, gigo$ie held from 2009 to 2010. Previously he sdras Business Manager - Food and C
Extrusion Products from 2007 to 2009 and Sales é&gmitative +ood Ingredients from 2002 to 2007. He previouglved the Company
various other capacities, including Plant Mana@erality Director and Technical Director.

Kathleen P. Pepski has been the Company's Vice President, Chief Fiak@dficer and Treasurer since February 2008 aad ®ecreta
from February 2008 to November 2008. She was thecliive Vice President and Chief Financial OffiofPNA Holdings, LLC and Katt
Corporation, a supplier of business equipment pads 2003 to 2007, the Vice President of FinaofcEloffman Enclosures, a manufacture
systems enclosures and a subsidiary of Pentair, fheen 2002 to 2003, Senior Vice President ande€CRinancial Officer of BMC Industrie
Inc., a manufacturer of lenses and aperture mdisks, 2000 to 2001, and Vice President and ContrateValspar Corporation, a paint ¢
coatings manufacturer, from 1994 to 2000.

Richard G. Erstad has been the Company's Vice President, Generalgeéband Secretary since November 2008. He was @e@Geunse
and Secretary of BUCA, Inc., a restaurant compéoyn 2005 to 2008. Mr. Erstad had previously beemtiorney with the corporate grouy
Faegre & Benson LLP, a law firm, from 1996 to 200Here his practice focused on securities law amdgers and acquisitions. He i
member of the Minnesota Bar.

Thomas J. Keller has been the Company's Vice PresidéMater Treatment Group since April 2012. Prior ttaiaing this position, M
Keller held various positions during his $8ar tenure with the Company, most recently agigger Treatment General Manager, a positic
held since June 2011. Previously, Mr. Keller serae@ Regional Manager of the Water Treatment Ghaup 2002 to 2011.

Theresa R. Moran has been the Company's Vice PresideQuality and Support since February 2010. Sincerjgithe Company in 19€
Ms. Moran has served the Company in a variety dfitppms, including Administration Operations Manadgem 1999 to 2007 and m
recently as Director - Process Improvement, a jposgthe held from 2007 until the time of her proioot

John R. Sevenich has been the Company's Vice Presidelmdustrial Group since May 2000. He was the Busindgsit Manager ¢
Manufacturing from 1998 to 2000 and was a Salegédemtative with the Company from 1989 to 1998.

“Election of Directors,” “Corporate Governance,”dafiSection 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting (iiance” of the 2012Proxy
Statement are incorporated herein by reference.
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We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsHtat applies to all of our directors and empésyencluding our princip
executive officer, principal financial officer, cwaller and other persons performing similar fuoo. We have posted the Code of Busi
Conduct and Ethics on our website located at hitpw.hawkinsinc.com. Hawkins' Code of Business Qarichnd Ethics is also available
print to any shareholder who requests it in writir@gm our Corporate Secretary. We intend to posbanwebsite any amendment to, or wa
from, a provision of our Code of Business Conduud &thics that applies to our principal executifécer, principal financial office
controller and other persons performing similarctions within four business days following the datesuch amendment or waiver. We are
including the information contained on our websisepart of, or incorporating it by reference irikas report.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

“Compensation of Executive Officers and Directar§'the 2013 Proxy Statement is incorporated hdvgithis reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

“Security Ownership of Management and Beneficialm@vghip” and “Equity Compensation Plan Informatiofithe 2013 Proxy
Statement are incorporated herein by this reference

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, ANCDIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

“Election of Directors” and “Related Party Transans” of the 2013 Proxy Statement are incorporieetin by this reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
“Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm’'e$”eof the 2013 Proxy Statement is incorporate@ihdry this reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@)(1) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
The following financial statements of Hawkins, lace filed as part of this Annual Report on Formkt0
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourffings.
Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2013 gmnidl 14 2012.
Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscatyended March 31, 2013, April 1, 2012, and ARri2011.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomthéofiscal years ended March 31, 2013, April 112Gnd April 3, 2011.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equitthiofiscal years ended March 31, 2013, April 12Gnd April 3, 2011.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for thelfigears ended March 31, 2013, April 1, 2012, andil/A 2011.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
@)(2) FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES OF THE COMPANY

The additional financial data listed below is ird#l as a schedule to this Annual Report on Ford 46d should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements preseime@art 11, Item 8. Schedules not included witts thdditional financial data
have been omitted because they are not requirdteoequired information is included in the finaal@tatements or the notes.

The following financial statement schedule for fiseal years 2013, 2012 and 2011.
Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts.
(@)(@3) EXHIBITS

The exhibits of this Annual Report on Form 10-Klumed herein are set forth on the attached Eximbliéx.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Comggaas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

HAWKINS, INC.

Date: May 30, 2013 By /sl Patrick H. Hawkins

Patrick H. Hawkins,
Chief Executive Officer and President
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each of the undersigned directors of the Compaogsdhereby make, constitute and appoint Patridkdivkins and Kathleen P. Pepski,
and either of them, the undersigned’s true andubhattorney-infact and agent, acting alone, with full power dbstitution, for the undersign
and in the undersigned’s name, place and steaigticand affix the undersigned’s name as such tire¢ the Company, in any and all
capacities, to any and all amendments to this AhReport on Form 10-K and to file the same, witheahibits thereto, and other documents ir
connection wherewith, with the Securities and ExgfgaCommission, granting unto said attorney-in;faot either of them, full power and
authority to do and perform each and every actswug or incidental to the performance and exesutfahe powers herein expressly granted

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has also been sifpedolv by the following persons on
behalf of the Company and in the capacities indita@n the date set forth beside their signature.

/sl Patrick H. Hawkins Date:May 30, 2013

Patrick H. Hawkins, Chief Executive Officer and
President (Principal Executive Officer) and Directo

/sl Kathleen P. Pepski Date:May 30, 2013

Kathleen P. Pepski, Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer, and Treasurer (Principal Financial Officer
and Principal Accounting Officer)

/sl John S. McKeon Date:May 30, 2013
John S. McKeon, Director, Chairman of the Board

/s/ Duane M. Jergenson Date:May 30, 2013
Duane M. Jergenson, Director

/sl Daryl I. Skaar Date:May 30, 2013
Daryl I. Skaar, Director

/sl James A. Faulconbridge Date:May 30, 2013
James A. Faulconbridge, Director

/sl James T. Thompson Date:May 30, 2013
James T. Thompson, Director

/sl Jeffrey L. Wright Date:May 30, 2013
Jeffrey L. Wright, Director

/sl Mary J. Schumacher Date:May 30, 2013
Mary J. Schumacher, Director
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Description

Reserve deducted from asset to which it
applies:
Year Ended March 31, 2013:

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Year Ended April 1, 2012:

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Year Ended April 3, 2011:

Allowance for doubtful accounts

SCHEDULE II
HAWKINS, INC.

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013, APRIL 1, 2012, AND APRIL 3, 2011

Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged to
Beginning Costs and Other Deductions Balance at
of Year Expenses Accounts Write-Offs End of Year
(In thousands)
$ 46C $ 201 — % 192 46¢
$ 40€ $ 78 — % 24 46(
$ 30C $ 12C — % 14 40¢€
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Exhibit Index

Unless otherwise indicated, all documents incorgarinto this Annual Report on Form 10-K by refareno a document filed with the
SEC are located under file number 0-7647.

Exhibit

3.1

3.2

10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

21

23.1

31.1

31.z

32.1

32.2

Description

Amended and Second Restated Articles of Incorpmmdtl)

Amended and Restated By-Laws.(2)

Description of Consulting Arrangement with JohrivieKeon.(3)

Hawkins, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.(4)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Coryipd2004 Omnibus Stock
Plan.(5)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (Directors) urtde Company’s 2004
Omnibus Stock Plan.(6)

Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement urttherCompany’s 2004
Omnibus Stock Plan.(7)

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit AviNotice and Restricted
Stock Agreement under the Company’s 2004 Omnibosk3®?lan.(8)

Hawkins, Inc. 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan.(9)

Form of Performance-Based Unit Award Notice andtiRd#ed Stock Agreement
under the Company’s 2010 Omnibus Incentive Pla.(10

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Coryipd?010 Omnibus
Incentive Plan.(11)

Hawkins, Inc. Executive Severance Plan.(12)

Subsidiaries of the registrant
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.

Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) of the
Exchange Act.

Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) of the
Exchange Act.

Section 1350 Certification by Chief Executive O#fic

Section 1350 Certification by Chief Financial O#ic

Method of Filing

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Incorporated by
Reference

Filed Electronically

Filed Electronically

Filed Electronically

Filed Electronically
Filed Electronically

Filed Electronically



101

Financial statements from the Annual Report on Fd@AK of Hawkins, Inc. for
the period ended March 31, 2013, filed with the SIEQViay 30, 2013, formatted
in Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRI))the Consolidated Balance
Sheets at March 31, 2013 and April 1, 2012, (i@ @onsolidated Statements of
Income for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2048jlA, 2012, and April 3,
2011, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Compnshe Income (Loss) for the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, April 1, 201®] April 3, 2011, (iv) the
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equitthiofiscal years ended March
31, 2013, April 1, 2012, and April 3, 2011, (v) Gotidated Statements of Cash
Flows for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013lAp 2012, and April 3, 2011,
and (iv) Notes to Condensed Consolidated Finaistetiements.
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1)
(2)

(3)
(4)

()
(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

Management contract or compensation plan omgement required to be filed as an exhibit to Arisual Report on Form 10-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 te @ompany’s Quarterly Report on Form QCer the quarterly period ended June 30, 2

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 te @ompany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Oct@Be2009 and filed November 3,
2009.

Incorporated by reference to Item 1.01 of@wenpany’s Current Report on FornmK8dated August 5, 2009 and filed August 11, 2

Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to@wmpany’s Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Megebf Shareholders filed July 23,
2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2ie €ompany’s Quarterly Report on FormQGer the quarterly period ended Septembe

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1He €ompany’s Quarterly Report on FormQGer the quarterly period ended Septembe
2008.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1iHe €ompany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgharterly period ended June 30,
2008.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2te Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgharterly period ended June 30,
2008.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1ie €ompany’s Registration Statement on Form Se8 filune 6, 2011 (file no. 3334735)

(10)Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the gerdytperiod ended June 30,

2010.

(11)Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thenpany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the gerdytperiod ended June 30,

2010.

(12)Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany’s Quarterly Report on Form @for the quarterly period ended July 3, 2!
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Exhibit 21

Subsidiaries of Hawkins, Inc.

Subsidiary State of Orgation

Vertex Chemical Corporation Minnesota



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors
Hawkins, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inréggstration statements No. 333-87582 on ForgrS8lating to the Hawkins, Inc. Employ
Stock Purchase Plan, as Amended and Restated, N&72¥61 on Form S-8 relating to the Hawkins, Employee Stock Purchase Plan, 33z
123080 on Form S-8 relating to the Hawkins, Ind2@mnibus Stock Plan, and 333-174735 on Forgr8ating to the Hawkins, Inc. 20
Omnibus Incentive Plan of our report dated May L3, with respect to the balance sheets of Hawkirs as of March 31, 2013 and Apri
2012, the related statements of income, comprebemstome, shareholders' equity and cash flowgdoh of the years in the thrgear perio
ended March 31, 2013, the related financial stat¢rsehedule and the effectiveness of internal ocbwtrer financial reporting as of March
2013 which report appears in the March 31, 2013iahreport on Form 10-K of Hawkins, Inc.

/s KPMG LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
May 30, 2013



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Patrick H. Hawkins, certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKl&F Hawkins, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortaémstate a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd ave have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

b) designed such internal control over finanaggarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of 1
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenteuisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegint’s internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finaiceporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theweden!
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the riegig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;

and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslimanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrast’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 30, 2013
[s/ Patrick H. Hawkins

Patrick H. Hawkins
Chief Executive Officer and President




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Kathleen P. Pepski, certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKl&F Hawkins, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortaémstate a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd ave have:

a)

b)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

designed such internal control over finanaggilarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of t
financial statements for external purposes in atmuce with generally accepted accounting princjples

evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentndsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the

registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finaiceporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theweden!
functions):

a)

b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknsdsehe design or operation of internal contraéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the riegig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

any fraud, whether or not material, that inesl\management or other employees who have a signiifiole in the registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 30, 2013

/sl Kathleen P. Pepski
Kathleen P. Pepski
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Traasu




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hawkins;.lfthe Company) on Form 10-K for the period enllfiedch 31, 2013, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date@h@he Report), I, Patrick H. Hawkins, Chief Exéea Officer and President of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135Gdmpted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley®2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExdeAct of 1934,
and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphlgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl Patrick H. Hawkins

Patrick H. Hawkins

Chief Executive Officer and President
May 30, 2013




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hawkins;.lfthe Company) on Form 10-K for the period enllfiedch 31, 2013, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dateh@he Report), I, Kathleen P. Pepski, Chief FitciahOfficer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursad906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExdeAct of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl Kathleen P. Pepski

Kathleen P. Pepski

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasu
May 30, 2013




